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Speaker: When shall the Bill be read the first time?·· 
\ iin~ 4•. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse West? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, 
seconded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
Porter Creek, for leave to introduce the following Bills : 
An Ordinance to Amend the Liquor Ordinance ; An Or­
dinance to Amend the Justice of the Peace Ordinance. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse West, seconded by the Hon­
ourable Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek , for 
leave to introduce an Ordinance to Amend the Liquor 
Ordinance; an Ordinance to Amend the Justice of the 
Peace Ordinance. Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion is carried. 

r Motion carried ! 
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Whitehorse. Yukon Territory. 
Non:!mber 4th. 1976. 

Mr. Speaker: Madam Clerk. is there a quorum pre­
sent'! 

Madam Clerk: There is . Mr. Speaker . 

Mr. Speaker : I will now call the House to order. 

' Prayers 1 

ROUTINE PROCEEDINGS 

Mr. Speaker: We wi ll proceed at th is time with the 
Order Paper. and unde r Rou tine Proceedings are there 
a ny documents or correspondence for tabling? 

Are there any reports of Committees? Are there a ny 
Pet it ions? Introduction of Bills? 

Ar.:: there any Notices of Motion for the Production of 
Papers? Are there any Notices of Motion or Resolution ? 
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse West? 

NOTICE OF MOTION 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard : Mr . Speaker . I give notice that 
on Monday, November the 8th . 1976, I shall move the 
fo llowing Motion: That representatives of the Counc il of 
Yukon Indians be invited to appear before Committee of 
the Whole at the earlies t mutually convenient time to 
discuss the subject of communicat ions between this 
government and the C.Y. I. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there a ny further Notices of Mo­
tion or Resolution? Th e Honourable Member from 
Kluane'? 

Mrs. Watson : Mr. Speaker , I would like to give 
Notice of Motion that the Government of the Yukon 
a mend Policy Directive, Volume 22, titled "Access to 
Files " to accommodate the specific needs of the Mem­
bers of the Legislative Assembly who need to have ac­
cess to government information, in order to carry out 
their responsibilities a s the elected representatives of 
the Yukon people, and furthermore that the a mend­
ments be tabled in this House during the life of th is 
Session . 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Notices of Mo­
tion or Resolution? 

The Honoura ble Member from Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, I would like to give 
Notice of Motion that the Community Assistance Ordi­
nance a nd the Homeowner Grant Ordinance be moved 
into Committee of the Whole for discussion. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any statements from the 
Ministers? This brings us then to the question period? 
Have you any questions ? 

QUESTION PERIOD 

Question re : Deadline for Application for Home Own­
ers' Grant 
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Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker. I have a question for the 
Minister of Local Government. My fi rst question is: 
What was the deadline date set for the a pplication for 
Home Owners · Grant? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon : Mr. Speaker, I haven't the in­
formation the Honourable Member wants concerning 
specific dates ; I wonder if I could bring written a nswers 
to the Honourable Member. 

Mr. Speaker: Would this be agreeable to th e 
Member ? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker. I have supplementary 
questions to that. Should I just handle them as written 
questions? 

Hon. Mr. McKinn.on: I would be very happy to take 
the questions and give a written reply. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse South Centre? 

Question re : French Language Program 

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, in view of the re­
pr imands we've been receiving regarding our lack of 
communications in various areas, I was wondering if 
the Minister of Education could give us an update on the 
French language program a nd how much money is 
being spent on it and how much and whether it has been 
used for a nything else besides teaching the French lan­
guage? 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Porter 
Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang : Mr. Chairman, this would be a 
lengthy reply . I wonder if the Honour able Member 
would allow me to bring in a written reply. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member fro m 
'Whitehorse Riverdale? 

Question re : Selkirk School Gymnasium 

Mr. Lengerke: I have a question for the Minister of 
Education this morning. I was just wondering if he 
could bring me up to date with respect to the planned 
expansion in the gymn asium at Selkirk school? 

Mr. Speaker : The Honourable Member from Porter 
Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang : Mr. Speaker, I have nothing further 
to add to what correspondence I've had with the Hon­
ourable Member other than the fact that we are doing 
the pre-design of the gymnasium for the Selkirk Street 
school and it will all be subject to the monies available in 
the forthcoming budget sess ion . 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse South Centre? 



Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, is it the intention of the 
Department of Education to develop a full-sized facility 
at that school or, in other words, what kind of a facility is 
it your intention to be the building at Selkirk School? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, it would be a gym­
nasium of a regular size, I would expect. I haven't seen 
any plans, Mr. Speaker, and I am unable to answer that 
question at the present time. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Mayo? 

Question re: Indian Land Claims 

Mr. Mcintyre: Mr. Speaker, I have a question for 
the Commissioner, as the Indian Land Claims 
negotiator for the Yukon: Is the Commissioner pre­
pared to put forward the views and policies as approved 
by this Assembly? 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker, I am fully pre­
pared to put forward the views established by this As­
sembly and there will be a White Paper to the Assembly 
indicating that, as Chief Negotiator, I represent the 
views of the Executive Committee, and the three Mem­
bers who sit before you; I also represent the views, I 
hope, of this Assembly. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Ogil­
vie? 

Question re: Rural and Remote Housing Program 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Speaker, I have a question to Mr. 
Commissioner: At what stage of progress is the rural 
and remote housing program in the Yukon? 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker, I'd appreciate the 
chance to take that question under notice and reply with 
a written response. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Hootalinqua? 

Question re: Transportation Expenditures for Private 
Vehicles 

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Speaker, I have a question for the 
Minister of Education. I wonder if you could tell me 
today, or it could be a written question, the amount of 
money that has been spent for the transportation of 
children to schools other than the buses. In other words, 
through private vehicles. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes , Mr. Chairman, this area of 
con~ern is presently under review. If you will recall, 
durmg the last budget session, there was an amount of 
approximately $25,000 voted for transportation sub-
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sidies and, in our review, we have found that there are 
more children living outside the boundaries where the 
bus stops are and , subsequently, I will be coming to the 
House probably for a supplementary in the area of 
$25,000. So, I would suggest that the transportation sub­
sidy for the year of 1976-77 will cost in the area of $50,000. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Klon­
dike? 

Question re: Historic Sites Master Plan 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I have a question to 
Mr. Commissioner this morning. 

In 1971, the Yukon Historic Sites and Monument 
Board p"assed a Resolution asking for establishment of a 
Master plan concerning historic sites in the Yukon Ter­
ritory , and my question would be, was there ever such a 
Master plan under taken in the Territory? 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker, I cou ld answer 
that in an ordinary way, but I would prefer to answer in 
more detail. To my knowledge, there is not a master 
plan; this is something that is being attended to at the 
current time to revamp the function of the Board , to 
make it more meaningful in preparation of such a mas­
ter plan; it is still very much in our mind, but I would be 
willing to prepare a detailed report for you on it. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale? 

Question re: Northern Development Conference 

Mr. Lengerke: Question for the Commissioner this 
morning. Mr. Commissioner, I wonder if you could tell 
me who is the representative, or if we are being rep­
resented, at the Northern Development Conference in 
Edmonton that's being held this week? Who is the 
Y.T.G. representative? 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker, there is no rep­
resentative of the Yukon Territorial Government at the 
Northern Development Conference this week. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Kluane? 

Question re: Transportation Policy 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, a further supplemen­
tary question to the Minister of Education. You indi­
cated that there would be an increase in the amount of 
expenditure for transportation beyond the school bus­
ing establishment. Have you changed your policy, and 
has this policy been made available to us? 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, there is no change in 
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policy: this is the present policy we are following to 
date. which is $6.00 per vehicle per day. What is causing 
the increase is the number of students that are living 
outside the regular bus runs. 

As far as any policy changes. in reference to this area. 
if there is any changes. they will be very. very minor. 
This is presently under review. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: A supplementary to that. I think the 
Minister gave some indication that he would be review­
ing the transportation policy. 

Now, we have all been waiting for that review for at 
least six months. The allowance was cut a great deal 
and the Department said they would be carrying on a 
review. and I would like to have some definite statement 
on the results of the review that was carried on_ by the 
Government. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker , I would like to point 
out that I made a commitment to review this present 
policy approximately two or three months ago. not six 
months ago. and that once it has been reviewed, and I 
have to take it into the Executive Committee if there are 
to be any changes, I will present it to this House. 

I would like to think it would be during the life of this 
Session. 

Mr. Speaker: A further supplementary? The Hon­
oUI·able Member from Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: Supplementary. I understand, and I 
would like the Honourable Member to affirm this if it is 
correct, that the Department of Indian Affairs has now 
entered into the field of funding transportation of school 
children to Yukon schools. Is this rumour that I 've 
heard - is it correct? 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

I 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I 'm presently at­
tempting to find out all the information about this, but to 
my knowledge the Honourable Member is correct. 

Mr. Speaker : Perhaps the Chair will permit one 
more supplementary in this. 

Mrs. Watson: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 
l s this, the Department of Indian Affairs entering into 

the funding of transportation, will they be assuming the 
fund ing of transportat ion for all Indian children, or are 
they only doing it in one specific instance? 

Mr. Speaker : The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I 'll have to bring in a 
reply to that question. 
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Mrs. Watson: Thank you . 

Mr. Speaker: The llonourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale? 

Question re: Economic Development 

Mr. Lengerke : A question for Mr. Commissioner. 
Mr. Commissioner. during last Session there was 

considerable discussion. debate. about economic de­
velopment. economic opportunities and one of the 
things we were talking about was the housing situation 
in Yukon. and it was demonstrated that possibly a pre­
fab housing program could be instituted in Yukon, and I 
think a resolution or ... 

Mr. Speaker: Order. please. Could the Honourable 
Member get to his question? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes l can, Mr. Speaker . I think a 
Resolution emanated from this House that asked the 
government to look into this . and I'm just wondering. 
has there been any response to that? 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker. I'm unaware of 
the Resolution. but I'll take it under notice and attempt 
to find out for you. 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you. 

Mr. Speaker: If there are no further ... the Honoura­
ble Member from Whitehorse South Centre? 

Question re: Dempster Highway 

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker. I have a question which 
perhaps the Minister of Local Government can answer. 
In view of the publicity that has been going on in various 
organizations regarding progress of the Dempster 
Highway, can he give us any information as to whether 
there is any valuat ion going on at the present time re­
garding the completion of this highway. and what is now 
the projected completion date for that highway? 

Mr. Speaker: Th e Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: I would be prepared to take the 
question to the Executive Committee Member in charge 
of highways and ask whether he would bring an answer 
to the Assembly. 

Mr. Speaker: As there are no further questions. we 
will proceed under Orders of the Day to Motions. 

ORDERS OF THE DAY 

MOTIONS 

Madam Clerk: Motion Number 3. standing in the 
name of the Honourable Member. Mr. Lengerke. 

Motion Number 3 



Mr. Speaker : Is the Honourable Member prepared 
to proceed with Motion Number 3 today ·J 

Mr. Lengerke : Yes. Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: Motion Number 3. moved by the Hon­
ourable Member from Whitehorse Riverdale. seconded 
by the Honourabl e M ember from Klu ane. tha t 
WHEREAS the Yukon Legislati ve Assembly is desirous 
in knowing what the exact pol icy of the Federal Gov­
ernment is wi th respect to economic and social de­
velopment in the Yukon while th e Native Land Claims 
settlement is in progress and pending BE IT RESOL­
VED that the Minister of Indian Affairs and Northern 
Development be requested to communicate to th is As­
sembly an officia l st atement of the Federal 
Government's policy for Yukon's economic and social 
development during the period of Land Claims negotia­
tion . and to clari fy and state the goals desired thereaf­
ter. 

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse River­
dale? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you . Mr. Speaker. I think. in 
view of our meeting with the Minister of Northern Af­
fairs yesterday. and certainly our questioning. that this 
Resolution would - is in order, and I believe the quick­
est way to handle it would be to certainly communicate 
to the Minister our wishes. and our request. and get 
back from him something in writing that possibly will 
clarify the answers he gave us yesterday. 

That 's about my only comment at this point. Mr. 
Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Kluane? 

Mrs . .Watson: Mr. Speaker, I agree with the mover 
of the Motion that all our Motion is going to do is to 
request that the answer be put in wr it ing , and it 's going 
to be very interesting, Mr. Speaker . to see whether the 
Minister i s able to be as ambiguous in his written reply 
as he was in his oral r eply. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? 
Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

1 Motion CarriedJ 

Motion Number 4 

Madam Clerk: Motion Number 4, standing in the 
name of the Honourable Member , Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Speaker: I s the Honourab le Member prepar ed 
to proceed with Motion Number 4 at this time? 

l'age I ll 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes. Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale. seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Kluane. that WHEREAS a 
lengthy period of time has lapsed since the Yukon T er­
ritorial Government submitted the position paper enti­
tled .. Meaningful Government for all Yukoners .. to the 
Federal Government, BE IT RESOLVED that the 
Minister of Indian Affa ir s and Northern Development 
be requested to commun icate forthwith to the Yukon 
Legislative Assembly. th e F'ederal Government's offi­
cial r eaction to the position paper and to specify what 
action. if any. from the F'ederal Government's point of 
v iew is deemed appl icable at this time. 

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse Riover­
dale? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you. Mr. Speaker . 
Again. in view of the discussions that we had with the 

Honourable M inister and the answers that we did re­
ceive from him, I would expect that this Resolution is in 
order and I would like to see it handled in a positive 
manner. 

Certainly, the comments tha t we've heard unoffi­
cially are from many diversif ied views. There's a lot of 
reaction, but aga in we require. I would th ink in this 
Assembly , an official answer. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member f rom 
Whitehorse North Centre? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I will suppor t the 
Motion of the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
Riverdale , and I think that it 's necessary to put the facts 
on the table that the Meaningful Government position 
paper of the Yukon Territorial Government was pre­
sented to the negotiatiors, the Federal Government 
negoti ators, and the Counc il for Yukon Indians on 
January the 20th of this year, and at that time theY .T.G. 
asked for a response at the earl iest opportunity from 
both the Federal Government and theC.Y.I. The reason 
being that we were listening constantly to the represen­
tations made from both the Federal Government and 
from the C.Y .I ., that theY .T.G . really had no plan as to 
how the future of the Yukon should evolve, following any 
land claim settlement. 

We thought it was absolutely necessary to get a dis­
cussion paper in the negotiating forum , so that we could 
ease the problems of communication that we were hav­
ing with~ne another, and that we would present a draft 
document for discussion, and we could have the mean­
ingful dialogue and continuity , and permanently as to 
where the Yukon was going. 

To this point in time, Mr. Speaker, we have notre­
ceived an answer or any response to that paper from 
either of the bodies that we asked a response for it, and I 
just find it a little difficult to keep hearing over and over 
from the different bodies involved as to how the Ter­
rito~ial Government will not present methods and pres­
ent 1deas as to where we should be going in the Yukon, 
when I would have to say that if anyone has done their 
homework and presented at least drafts for discussion it 
has been the Government of the Yukon. 

As one of the Executive Committee members, I can 
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only say that my colleagues and I hope that we are gomg 
to hm·e this commun ication and dialogue and response 
in the not-too-distant future because it's always been 
ou r opinion that that's the onl y way that we're going to 
get this thing settled - by discussion and by commum­
cat ion : and we keep putting documents on the table so 
we can ha\·e this discussion and communication. and 
we'd only be too happy to get into it. Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: T he Honou r able Member fr om 
Kluane" 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker . I'm certainly going to 
support this Motion. I think that an official r equest from 
th is body should go to the Minister. so that we have a 
wr itten official reply to the subm ission that was made 
by our Government. 

There is one thing that concerns me though: the C. Y .I . 
has had a copy of the proposal or the draft proposal. a 
talking posi t ion. The Minister of Indian Affairs. the 
Government of Canada has had a copy of that proposal. 
We have had a copy of that proposal. but the people of 
the Yukon Terr itory. as far as they are concerned. it is 
still supposed to be a confidential document. How abso­
lutel y ludicrous this type of situation is. 

Su rely. we should be able to table our own document 
in our own House. to make it available to our people. and 
I would hope that the member, one member of thl:'! Ex­
ecutive Committee. sees fi t on Monday morning . to 
table the document. "Meaningful Government ... 

Mr . Speaker: I 'll take th r~ t <1~ <1 question. The Hon­
ourable Member from Whitehor se North Centre? 

Bon. Mr. McKinnon: There was a question raised by 
the Honourable Member . and I think it's important to be 
answered in the Assembly. Mr. Speaker. 

We have been asked by both parties . the C.Y .I . and the 
Federal Government, the other parties invol ved in the 
negotiat ion. to keep the document confidential u~til 
there was a response. Ever y document concernmg 
Land Claims has been leaked, it has been put out. it has 
been given in secrecy, and there is one th ing that the 
Federal Government and the C.Y .l . agr ee on, that in the 
area of not leaking information that theY .T.G. has been 
absolutely the only body that has lived up to every ag­
reement that has been made. 

I can only promise the Honourable Member th at t he 
tabling of meaningful government will be discussed at 
Ex Com on Friday. and I am in complete agr eement and 
sympathy with her that I want to see that document 
tabled to the people of the Yukon as quickly as humanly 
possible. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse R i \'~rda l e'? 

Mr. Lengerke: F ine, Mr. Speaker , we can call ques­
tion. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you pr epared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 
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SomeMembers: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is car­
ried. 

Motion Carried 

Mr. Speakt' r: Wt- A'i l l now proceed to t=' ublic Bill s. 

PUBLIC BILLS 

Madam Clerk : Ser0nd r~":-~ding of Bill Number 2. 
Electrica l Protection Ordinance 

Mr. Speaker : The Honourable M ember fr om 
Whitehorse Nor th Centre? 

Bill Number 2 - Second Reading 

Bon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker I move. seconded 
by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West. that 
Bil l Number 2 be read a second t ime. 

Mr. Speaker: I t has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre. seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehor se West. that 
Bill Number 2 be now read a second time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carr ied. 

Motion Carried 

Madam Clerk: Bill Number 2 has now been read a 
second time. 

Second reading of Bill Number 3. an Ordinance Re­
specting the Institute of Chartered Accountants. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honou r able Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre? 

Bill Number 3 - Second Reading 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker. I move. sec­
onded by the Honourable member from Whitehorse 
West . that Bill Number 3 be read a second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre. seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West. that 
Bill Number 3 be now read a second time. 

Are you prepared for the question ? 



Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is car­
ried. 

1M otion Carried 1 

Madam Clerk: Bill Number 3 has now been read a 
second time. 

Second reading of Bill Number 4, an Ordinance to 
Amend the Insurance Premium Tax Ordinance. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre? 

Bill Number 4 - Second Reading 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I move , sec­
onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West. that Bill Number 4 be read a second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West, that 
Bill Number 4 be now read a second time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Me. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

1M otion Carried J 

Madam Clerk: Bill Number 4 has now been read a 
second time. 

Bill Number 5, second readingof Bill Number 5, an 
Ordinance to Amend the Liquor Ordinance. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse West? 

Bill Number 5 - Second Reading 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, I move , seconded 
by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse Porter 
Creek , that Bill Number 5 be read a second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse West, seconded by the Hon­
ourable Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, that 
Bill Number 5 be now read a second time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker,arewenotgoingtohave 
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the opportunity to speak on the principle of the Bill at 
this time? 

Mr. Speaker: Yes. Before I call the question, I will 
recognize the Honourable Member from Kluane. 

Mrs. Watson: Thank you. Mr. Speaker. 
1 would very briefly like to comment on the proposed 

amendments to the Liquor Ordinance, to the pol1cy of 
the Bill. and I must say that it is a very difficult situa­
tion , in order to come up with some types of amend­
ments that would suit all sectors of our populatiOn. On 
this one you're not going to win, no matter what you do. 

But on the other hand, I don't think the approach to 
take is almost a type of cop-out type of approach, 
where we hand the decision down to a local authont1es. I 
think the Liquor Ordinance and the problem of liquor ~s 
one of the big responsibilities of every member of th1s 
Chamber, and we knew this when we ran for off1ce, 
people who voted for us or vo~ed ~~ainst us, kne~ .t~1s 
when we ran for office, and I thmk 1t IS our respon~1b1l1ty 
to accept the responsibility of the Jaws controllmg the 
Territories. 

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? The Hon­
ourable Member from Whitehorse North Centre? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, there are tow:o 
principles in this Bill that I think should be stated at th1s 
time. 

The first one is the question of the enforcement of 
legislation under the Liquor Ordinance. There_ was a 
principle accepted by the drafters of the Ordmance, 
that as the Y.T.G. under the Yukon Act is charged with 
the responsibility of intoxicants in the Territory, that 
they should be responsible for the enforcement of any 
Jerislation under the Liquor Ordinance. . 

There is nothing in the Bill that puts the enforcmg 
authority in the hands of municipalitie~ , L.l.D.'s ~run­
organized areas. The enforcing authonty of the L1quor 
Ordinance as a Territorial Statute will still be totally 
under the jurisdiction of the R.C.M.P ., regardless of the 
amendments that are presently before the Members in 
the Liquor Ordinance. 

If we accept the responsibility of making money.o~t. of 
booze then I think that we should take the respons1b1hty 
of enf~rcing the Liquor Ordinance and the liquor regula­
tions. 

The other point, Mr. Speaker, that I think should be 
m~e that of course as my portfolio duties as Minister 
of Lo~al Government, I travel through the Yukon a 
great deal , and I am also meeting with the members of 
the L.I.D.'s and the Municipalities constantly. It be­
comes apparent to me, Mr. Speaker.' tha~ there are cer­
tain municipalities that have no d1fhcult1es whatsoever 
in the area of public drinking. 

I bring to your attention the municipality, the Town of 
Faro. Their representatives and their Mayor are qu1te 
adamant, they have no problems whatsoeve.r enforcin~ 
the present regulations found l:'lder the L1quor Ordi­
nance. 

That's completely different when we talked to the 
representatives of the people of Dawson and of 
Whitehorse for very different reasons. We get down to 

0 



) 

the L..l.D.'s area. where the Watson l.ak_e people 
through their elected member there and thetr ele<:ted 
members on the L.I.D. tell me that the~· Jw:·e no. pr ob­
lems at all in the enforcement of the publtc dnnkm~ 
sect ions of the Ordinance. I hear comple_tely dtllerentl) 
from the Honourable Member I rom Teslm. and l rom the 
L.I.D. people in Teslin. 

Mr. Speaker. in my total career in politics in the 
Yukon Territor y. I \·e not been one to try and sho,·e the 
wi she s of Big Brother Daddy Go,·ernment .'n 
Whitehorse down the throats of the people 111 the outstde 
areas. I would be a hypocrite if l did it from this end 
when I'm crying for responsibility from the Federal 
Government in Ottawa. . . 

This is an attempt - the principle or this Bill ts an 
attempt to keep the enforcement at the Terntona~ Je,·e~. 
It will be a level ol enlorcement by the R.C.M .I . 
throughout the Territory. but to allow loca l optio~ as to 
what direction different muntctpaltltes. L.I.D. s and 
other areas want to go under the terms of the Ltquor 
Ordinance. To try to make a homo&enous typeof r.egula­
tion throughout the Yukon Terntor v at thts ttme. I 
think. would just be inv iting disaster and would be abso-
lutely imposs ible to do. . 

There's another point on principle. Mr.Speaker. I ve 
always round in my dealings with the Mumctpaltttes and 
the L.I.D.'s and the way that we deal wtth Ottawa too. 
that it ·s so easy to make noises and to yell and to scream 
against the senior go\'ernment. but it's a diff~rent ap­
proach when you have to accept the responstbiltty . and 
I'm of the opinton that perhaps all the_ hues and the cnes 
that we hear about the way th at the Ltquor Ordmance ts 
being abused in the Yukon Territory. might not be JUSt a 
little bit of pol itical fl ack that certam people thmk that 1t 
would be politically expedient to hurl at the Terntonal 
Government from time to time. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honou r abl e Member from 
Whitehorse South Centre? 

Mr. Hibberd: Yes. Mr. Speaker. I would l ike to draw 
attention to the Minister that I think the problem_ that 
will arise as a result of each locality being able to mstt­
lute their own wishes will indeed. as you say . r esult in a 
good deal of confusion. because if someone is ~?w 
travelling the highway. and they c?me mto the Tetttt­
ory. and they find that they can drmk m Watson Lake. 
and they travel farther up the highway and they ~re 
doing the same thing in Teslin . and they are breakmg 
the law in Teslin. and as he travels up the htghway. 
there will be a considerable confusion on the part of 
anyone travelling through. . 

1 think that this Bill really does not - there s a lot of 
good in the Bill. Mr. Speaker, b~t I think it_ begs the 
question , I think the government tmpos mg thts legtsla­
tion is putting their head m the sand. 

I would like to commend the Minister of Health and 
Welfare regarding her program for education in al­
cohol , 1 think this is the proper approach to take, buti 
don't think that if we hide the drinking from the publtc. tt 
has any effect whatsoever on the _alcohol problem. It 
used to be against the Jaw to drmk m publtc m the 
Yukon. At that time , there was constderably more 
drinking on the streets than there is now. 

1 t ts st iII break mg the laws to be intoxicated in a publtc 
·tce. \\'c h<l\ e tha t legislation. let's enforce that legts· 

i1h,on. \\'L' will lHl\'l' legislation regarding litter. let's 
enfor ce that legislation. That's the problem that we 
ha\'e to lace. that is what we are concer'led about. 

1 don't reall v think this Bill is going to solve any prob­
lems as tar as the alcohol problem in the Territory is 
concerned. 

Mr. Speaker: T lw Honourable Member f r om 
llootalinqua'! 

Mr. Fleming: Yes. Mr. Speaker. I ha,·e the same 
concern as the member on my right who has just spoken 
on the principle of the Bill. and the fact that il may 
change this whole Territory tnto _JUSt a bunch ol ltltl_e 
jurisdictions runnmg a liquor busmess and that doesn I 
work I agree. . . 

The L.I.D.'s are not capab le yet. and not betng patd 
enough to take the responsibility. so I agree with that 
principle of the Hill. that it should be sti ll under the 
Territor ial Go,·ernment at the lop le,·el. and I mysell 
hu\'e been into this llouse with this same problem two or 
three times already. and th e same question always 
arises as to somehow the public drinking the st r eets is 
the actual problem. They don 'l seem to be able to get rid 
or it. they don't seem to be able to enforce the regula­
tions that are here. and I agree again. that is where 
we've got to step on it. . . 

I think every indi\' idual that has a problem wtlh dnnk­
ing is break ing our regulations. if he abuses it. therefore 
I do agree with the Section. and I'm hopeful that during 
this Council that that pr inciple of just turning it over to 
the L.I.D.'s and just ha,·ing them more or less run i t. I 
hope that don't get through at all. 

M r . SpeakPr: Th~· Honourable Member from 
Whitehor se V\ <"!>I·.' 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker. just briefly re· 
garding t he pnnctple of this Bill. It's been my under­
standing. since I \·e been PI mPmher of thi!' Houo:;e. that 
the legislat ion brought in should be a result of input 
from Member" 11nd from the people of the Yukon. and 
it's my firm belief. Mr. Speaker. that the legis I at ion you 
have before you now is that product. 

We have listened very carefully to the petitions and 
letters and requests and pleas. in some cases. f rom 
every area of the Yukon for the last year and a half on 
thi s subject. and it has all been considered ver y ca re­
fully in the drafting of th is legislation. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Pelly 
River ? 

Mr. McCall: )'es. :vir. Speaker. 
1 have very l ittle to add to what whas been slated. bul l 

am in concurrence with the Honourable Minister for 
Loca l Government. I th ink this is necessary legislation. 
or amendments to the l('~:i~i<: l :on which we need. in 
order to stww our respu.tsibilily to the people of the 
Yukon . 1 think this is rur !Josi t ion and l think we should 
recognize that factfir~t. i tsl ead of being . shall I scty . too 
easy. 

1 think that it is necessary leg islation at this point in 



t ime, because of the substantial abuse of alcohol and 
what it stands for. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 
I certainly agree with the principle of the Bill, but 

hopefully I think the debate that will follow will bring 
about some amendments to that Bill that are required. 

Mr. Speaker: Any further debate? Are you pre-
pared for the question? 

Some Members : Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

(Motion Carried J 

Madam Clerk: Bill Number 5 has now been read a 
second time. 

Second reading of Bill Number 6. an 0rdinance to 
Amend the Justice of the Peace Ordinance. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse West? 

Bill Number 6 - Second Reading 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr . Speaker, I move, seconded 
by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse Porter 
Creek, that Bill Number 6 be read a second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse West, seconded by the Hon­
ourable Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek , that 
Bill Number 6 be now read a second time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

(Motion Carried J 

Madam Clerk: Bill Number 6 has now been read a 
second time. 

Second reading of Bill Number 7, Insurance Ordi­
nance. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Bill Number 7 - Second Reading 

Hon . Mr. La~g: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by 
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the Honourable Member trom Whitehorse North 
Centre, that Bill Number 7 be read a second lime. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek. seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre. that Bill Number 7 be now read a second time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members : Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion carried. 

1M otion Carried J 

Madam Clerk: Bill Number 7 has now been read a 
second time. 

The second reading of Bill Number 8. an Ordinance to 
Amend the Highways Ordinance. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Bill Number 8 - Second Reading 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre , that Bill Number 8 be read a second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded by 
the Honouraple Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre, that Bill Number 8 be now read a second time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Questionn. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

r Motion CarriedJ 

Madam Clerk: Bill Number 8 has now been read a 
second time. 

Second reading of Bill Number 9, An Ordinance to 
Amend the Securities Ordinance. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honoura ble Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Bill Number 9 - Second Reading 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I move , seconded 
by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre, that Bill Number 9 be read a second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded bv 
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the Honour able Member fro m Whitehorse North 
Centre. that Bill Number 9 be now read a second time. 

Are you prepared for the ques tion ? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members : Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall decla re the Motion as carried . 

r M otion Carried J 

Madam Clerk: Bill Number 9 has now been read a 
second time. 

Mr. Speaker: This brings us to the end , on the Order 
Paper today, of Public Bills , and inasmuch as some 
members have indicated to the Chair th::~t it is their 
desire today to reply to the Speech from the Throne, at 
this time the Chair would entertain any replies to the 
Speech from the Throne. 

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse Porter 
Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I was very taken back 
by a comment which was made about the Throne 
Speech. The comment I'm referring to is that some 
members have r eferred to it as a " do nothing" speech. 

l must take exception to this statement. The elected 
members of the Executive Committee chose to 
bring in three controver sial but important policy 
changes to be debated by this legislature. You have 
before you, a complete rewrite of the Liquor Ordinance, 
as well as a comprehensive piece of legislation , the 
Electrical Protection Ordinance. 

Also, you will be presented with a Green Paper on 
recreation. All three of these a reas are going to be a 
gr eat deal of concern to a ll Yukoners. 

Mr. Speaker, a lot of long hours of work have gone into 
these areas of concern, and in my opinion, the work 
accomplished has been a major achievement, expres­
sing the view of many of the changes we have had to 
adapt to, both Territorially and Federally. 

In the last 24 hours, we have had the opportunity of 
lis tening to two major addresses. Both these speeches 
have expressed concern over the land claims and the 
potential ill effects which could occur if the situation is 
not handled properly. 

As you know, the Territorial Government has been 
very responsible in this area, and has made new and 
innovative proposals to the negotiating table in order to 
ensure that a settlement will be a positive step for 
Yukon and Yukon's future . Both organizations, the 
Federal Government and the Council for· Yukon In­
dians , promised in January that they would reply to our 
proposal, but up to this time have chosen to ignore it. 

To Mr. Allmand's credit, has he committed his gov­
ernment to respond as soon as possible. Hopefully, this 
is not an idle promise. 

Earlier, I mentioned the many changes in govern­
ment which we, the elected Members on the Executive 
Committee, have had to adapt to . Government patron-
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lge in the important areas of federal government ap­
pointments are causing grave concern to all Yukoners. 

In the Senate, we have an individual claiming he is 
representing a ll Yukoners, without going to the 
electorate. He c laims he has been giving the legislature 
free advice. This is untrue. 

Mr. Speaker , he told all Canada, and I quote , " The 
challenge facing the Territorial Government and its 
elected representatives, is to realize that when a land 
cla ims settlement is made, the governmental struc­
tures in the Yukon Territory as they know them today, 
will no longer exist". 

Mr. Speaker , I want to make it very clear that if there 
ar e to be any changes in our government, and I have 
said our government , we will initiate the changes, and 
we do not need the obvious destructive advice of our 
appointed gentleman in the Senate. 

It is interesting to note that the Federal Minister has 
been advised that the Indian population of the Yukon is 
deprived of partic ipating in our society. We all know 
this is not true. 

Presently, there are four constituencies which have a 
majority of native constituents. They have chosen to 
vote for the individual who they feel will best represent 
them, rather than along racial lines. Those four people 
are now presently sitting in this legislature , and I would 
like to add , are more than adequately representing their 
constituents. 

In the school system, we have a number of people of 
native ancestry who have been elected to school com­
mittees, not because of race, but because of ability. The 
reason I point this out, Mr. Speaker, is I believe that it is 
essentia l it go on record that people of the Yukon believe 
in integration, and not the present Federal Government 
policy which can only lead to premediated apartheid . 

In the last two years, we have had two years of 
economic decline. I was very disappointed that the 
Minister was not prepared to outline a Federal govern­
ment policy on economic development. All Yukoners 
will be awaiting his return late this fall or early next 
spr ing to announce a Federal government policy on 
economic development in order that we can carry on the 
everyday business of Yukon. 

Mr. Speaker, in closing, I would like to say to all 
Members that it is up to this Legislature to show our 
Yukon residents, as well as the rest of Canada, that we 
are prepared to become masters of our own destiny. 
With Mr. Miller's resignation, we have the opportunity 
now and it 's up to us to prove it. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further replies at this 
time? 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, the other day, you your­
self referred to the Yukon Territorial Government as a 
ship of state. I believe that there are many indications 
that tell us that our ship of state is drifting aimlessly, 
battered between the Federal Government and the 
C.Y.I. , and it looks like it 's weakened by the mutiny of 
its crew. It also appears that there is a need for the hand 
of a strong , steady captain to get it on its course again so 



we can weather the storms that I ie ahead. I was ,·er v 
disappo inted in the Throne Speech. I thought the 
amount - that there was an insignificant amount of 
business of th e Yukon people placed before us for our 
consideration. Actually. there are only four or fi\·e Bills 
nf any consequence and I was looking forward to a re­
\'iew. a significant review. of the Taxation Ordinance. 
Now. if you recall last May. when we were discussing 
the taxation. when I brought forward sect ion after sec­
t ion after section that was ambiguous. tha t contradicted 
another section. and if you will recall. that one sect ion 
we amended twice oursel,·es l ast Session. And if - I'm 
su re that there's only one person that can really inter­
pret our Taxation Ordinance and that ·s the Legal Ad­
,·isor of the Yukon Territory who has written it. I think 
it's high time that our government undertook to re,·iew 
that piece of legislation so that it can be read and under­
stood . It has to be simple : people have to know and be 
able to understand a taxation ordinance. 

Another area that I brought up in May and I'm bring­
ing it up again. is the L.I .D. legislation. There must be a 
review of the Local Improvement District legislation. 
The Territorial Government must be commended in 
their endeavours to hand over decision-making powers 
to the local level. They must be commended for it and 
it 's a good indication. but I think that they've put the 
cart before the horse and in many instances they are 
handing responsibi lities and decision-making powers to 
boards of trustees when the boards of trustees do not 
have that power defined by law. My biggest concern is 
that one of these days a whole board of trustees or an 
individual is going to find himself in a court of law. find 
themselves in a court of law. because they made deci­
sions and that they made orders when they did not have 
the legal authority to make them. Also. in the L.I.D. 
legislation. there have been requests from communities 
to review and look at the size of the board of trustees 
because. at a local level. many issues are very sensi­
tive: r think we all realize when politics get to a local 
level it becomes sensitive and often quite personal. 
When you have a three-man board. and if one is away. 
you have two people : one seconding it - one moving it 
and one seconding. And then the other one moves it and 
the other one seconds it. So. you really. r eally need to 
look at that piece of legislation and I was really quite 
disappointed that it wasn't brought before us today. And 
also. I was hopeful that maybe the Government would 
give us some indication that they at least recognize the 
need to establish more local parameters for labour and 
management relations. At least recognize that there is a 
need for something, at least do some review of the situa­
tion to see i f whether we should even get into it. But it's 
been a question that 's been bandied around the Territ­
ory for six months now. Surely the Government has 
done some homework on this. We've been given Bills, a 
few White and Green Papers, and told that the relation­
ship between the Indians and the non-Indians in the 
Yukon is deteriorating and it 's all because we haven't 
been talking to the Indian organizations. 

It's rather interesting that the Minister and the Com­
missioner just realized that the relationships between 
the Indian and non-Indian were deteriorating. They 
don't realize how badly, unfortunately. 

The Federal Government has ra ised the aspiration of 
these Inrlian organization. They have acceded to every 

whim and wrsh of these Indian organizations. MuJ1ey 
has flowed freel y and in unlimited quantities and now 
thcy\·e reached a point where they're going to havr to 
make a decision . And it was \'ery interesting that the 
:vlinistcr had the audacity. and I mean the audacity . to 
rder the fact that Indians aren't represented in any 
'isiblc way in the political life of the Yukon. He had the 
audacity to say that when his department has been 
breaking thrir necks to spend and to fund the establish­
ment of an Indian go,·ernment. They fund C.Y. I .. 
they've encouraged it to be established. I'm not critici7-
mg the C.Y. I .. but it has been the F'edera l government 
money that has done it. They have funded the Yukon 
N<:~tin~ Brotherhood. they've encouraged it: I'm not 
critici1ing. They have funded the YANSI organization. 
Those are political organizations with political people 
elected by the Indian people. They fund and encourage 
Band Council s where you have a Band chief and coun­
sellors. They fund Band managers. All of a sudden. he 
realizes. or they realize. we've got Indian government. 
but we really don't have Indian people in the Yukon 
go,·ernment at the local and Territorial level where 
there really should be. And now. all of a sudden. it's 
because we haven't communicated. I think. if you look 
at the file. that I must defend the Yukon government. 
They have attempted in every way at the local govern­
ment level. school committee level. terr itorial level. to 
have Indian people get involved in the political struc­
tures of the Yukon. The mechanism is there. the oppor­
tunities are there. All that is needed is the desire. The 
Indians can field the candidate and if they will support 
their candidate in many. many areas they are in the 
majority. I think ever y Member in this Chamber re­
sented. and every person almost in the Yukon, resented 
the almost veiled threat that was implied in the 
Minister's address. 

It's a very interesting thing. Canada is prepared to 
spend millions to ensure that the people of Rhodesia get 
a democratic structure of government , a government 
where there's rule by the majority and the majority and 
where the right to vote is given to all people and there is 
no difference by race. And Canada is committed and 
has supported internationally the support to get this 
type of government in Rhodesia. What are they doing up 
here? They are virtually spending millions to break 
down that democratic process to have a government 
defined along racial lines, to take away one man, one 
vote principal. And the reaction I have from the phone 
calls of people in my constituency have given me a great 
deal of concern. They didn't like it, they didn't like the 
vei led 4hreat. 

I think , Mr. Speaker, that we got the message. You'd 
better shape up or we might just cut the purse strings. 
And I wonder. really, how important is money to people 
m the Yukon Territory. It is very, very important. It's 
nice to say you don't need it when you've got it, but I 
thmk that the breed of people in the Yukon Territory is 
the kind whose principals are not going to be destroyed 
by a threat of restrictions or financial assistance. And I 
feel quite sure that this message would come forward 
from t~e people of the Yukon if they ever have the op­
portunrty through the ballot box to give their represen­
tative that message. 

I think that we are in a position where we are going to 
make a choice; we are at the breaking point. Are we 
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going to consider a two-government s tructure for the 
Yukon or a one-government structure for the Yukon? 
Always we have hoped and almost prayed that the In­
dian people would not take the direction and follow the 
direction that they were pushed by the department of 
Indian Affairs for a two-government structure. But I 
think that we've been backed up against the wall and 
that we are going to have to look very , very carefully at 
the alternatives and under which system, a one­
government system which the Minister is holding up his 
ri nger and shak ing at us. or a two-government system. 
Which would bring the greatest peace and harmony to 
the Yukon? 

Thank you. Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale ? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you. Mr. Speaker.In respond­
ing to the opening address as presented by Commis­
sioner Art Pearson. it also presents me with an oppor­
tunity to welcome him here and to teli him that I'm quite 
happy to work with him and I offer my co-operation and 
assistance in his role as Commissioner of the Yukon. 

I must admit the other day my initial reaction to the 
Commissioner 's address, my comment was something 
to the effect that it was something of a nothing address 
in that it didn't really impress or say something that 
most Yukoners didn't really know already. I did say, 
however, that there was a definite message, and though 
I cannot totally agree with some of the statements, I 
think it will auger well for this Council if we react and 
take action in a constructive and positive manner to the 
issues outlined in this address. Certainly, the ordi­
nances, the legislation, that was put forth is a very 
positive and major achievement and will serve to be of 
major consequence, I'm sure. 

First, I cannot argue that the next few years will 
prove to be the most important and critical years for 
Yukon in finding the solution to and settling the Indian 
Land Claims, in settling the Indian Land Claims and 
providing without doubt that Yukon people have the 
capacity, the capability and the maturity to run their 
own government. I only hope that some of that matur­
ity, capability and capacity will come out and prove 
successful in connection with the current Cyprus Anvil 
situation. 

Evidence that the private business and labour sectors 
are facing up to the challenge of Yukon's economic 
slowdown is certainly correct and I'm confident that 
we'll see further efforts from those segments of our 
population in trying to keep Yukon's economy as heal­
thy as possible at this time. In other words, the Chamber 
of Commerce and the Yukon Chamber of Mines should 
be commended, other organizations should be com­
mended in their actions. 

I'm somewhat disappointed, however, with the Ter­
ritorial Government's part as identified by the Com­
missioner in advising that we are in the process of estab­
lishing an economic research and planning unit. Only in 
process. To me, that's not good enough. I'm concerned 
that this was not done long before now. I've certainly, 
during my short time as Counsellor , urged the Govern­
ment that we'd better take some positive steps and get 
this show on the road with respect to Yukon's develop-
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ment strategy in economic and related social develop­
ment. Much debate has already taken place in regard to 
the goals and objects and I anticipate further debate 
will probably take place this Session. 

I 'm seriously concerned that the establishment of a 
research and development unit will shortchange the 
much-required public input that 's required. It's only 
through direct involvement of the people, of the citizens 
of the Yukon , all across this Territory , that we will gain 
the ability to respond in a meaningful and competent 
manner, to major developments such as the mines, new 
mines or pipelines, smelters, significant tourist de­
velopments and so on. 

I urge the government, I urge the government to heed 
that advice and employ this method if you wish to ne­
gate the need of - for further major expenditures by 
using consultants and so on. Let 's use our own local 
ingredients, our grass roots expertise and involve them, 
people activity , involved in the activities in which we 
wish to identify further opportunities and to establish 
Yukon policy. 

I also believe, Mr. Speaker , that we now have a prime 
opportunity in the naming of a fourth elected Member to 
Ex Com, to take on the responsibilities of industrial and 
resource developments , along with tourism, highways 
and Public Works. In other words, the time is right to 
create an industry , commerce and tourism portfolio. 

In addition, as the opportunities ava ilable in these 
activities involve all Yukon people, non-Indian and In­
dian alike, I think a responsibility in this portfolio would 
be providing a constant liaison and working relation­
ship with the native organizations of Yukon as well, is 
essential. 

It will provide an opportunity to take advantage of 
funding and technical programs that today are availa­
ble and geared to this kind of people involvement. 

I think a statement of policy or recognition for sake of 
a better phrase is required to clarify to the tourist indus­
try of the Yukon just exactly how the government views 
and appreciates the impact that they have on the 
economy of the Territory. I think recent actions or inac­
tions, if you like , by the Territorial Government in this 
regard have dampened somewhat their enthusiasm and 
I believe people in this industry are waiting for a gov­
ernment statement. 

I view the tourist industry as the number one indus­
try, right alongside the mining and the transportation 
fields. 

I suggest we take a cue from the results that have 
been obtained in connection with the Department of 
Local Government. Certainly, since that responsibility 
has been given to an elected Member, things have hap­
pened in a positive manner and I think that people in­
volved are at least satisfied that they have a person they 
can talk to and understands their problems. 

I have never experienced such frustration as exists in 
dealing with the land claims issue. I personally agree 
with the basic analysis and position that was first put 
forth in October of '74, but not made public , and only 
tabled in the legislature a few Sessions ago. 

I have really never been able to sincerely discuss the 
most recent Yukon paper entitled "Meaningful Gov­
ernment for all Yukoners" because it was never tabled 
and I tried on many occasions to do this , as you all know. 

I believe that this information must be available so 



that all Yukoners can react , and react through com­
munication with each other. express their views. So 
there's no doubt that the effor ts around the land claims 
negotiating have been sincere and honourable, but I 
think the method of negotiating is quite acceptable, but 
it was never started without proper communication in 
the first place. 

I think the Commissioner, in his address. as well as 
the Minister of Indian Affa irs the other day. stressed the 
need for communication. I personally can't argue with 
that, but I suggest to them that we'd better first decide 
how. that vital ingredient is going to be provided at th is 
stage of the game. It almost appears that we had better 
start-a new page. 

I thin I< we must all tell the Federal government in no 
uncertain terms how we expect this to occur. 

You know, Mr. Speaker , for most of my professional 
working life, and for that matter during my boyhood, 
I've certainly been involved with the Indian people. I've 
been involved with the economics and resource de­
velopment of their lands across the west, at their re­
qu est , and not in any way attached to Indian Affairs. 

I recall problems of regional and municipal expan­
sion , in other words problems that we were looking for 
land for resources, for reservoirs and irrigation, land 
for industrial parks, land for housing, land for recrea­
tion , land for shopping complexes, not always land for 
the white person, but land for the Indian person as well. 
Not once in my recollection, were we ever successful in 
our negotiations until the parties directly involved did 
some talking themselves, in other words, communica­
tion, and that's been mentioned quite often lately in this 
Legislature. 

But don 't be fooled by communicating. It doesn't 
mean that you're weak. By communicating, a common 
ground can be found, and sure, it takes a lot of time , but 
in the process a lot of other things will get done, essen­
tial in the process of Territorial development. 

Mr. Speaker : The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Thank you , Mr. Speaker. 
I was interested in remarks made by all the Members 

who have replied to the Speech from the Throne. I was 
especially interested , Mr. Speaker , with some of the 
remarks made by the Honourable Member from 
Kluane. I remember as we went through the Legislative 
Programming Committee with my colleagues, that De­
partments kept bringing in legislation and I said no, you 
know I agree with the Honourable Member from Kluane 
that there is too much government in the Yukon, there's 
too much legislation , there's too many regulations, and 
I know exactly what she'll say if we bring in all these 
pieces of legislation. She'll say here we go again, we are 
being over-governed, there's too much legislation , 
there 's too many regulations, so we said only those 
things that are absolutely essential and necessary we'll 
bring to the Assembly this time. 

I know, Mr. Speaker, after a long career in politics, 
the only thing you can be sure of is that you just can't 
win. If you bring in too much , you get it, if you bring in 
too little on the other side, you get it too. 

At any rate, Mr. Speaker, I think that there were 
many constructive things that were said in the 
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speeches. I think that the teglslatJOn that wt: i1ave 
brought was necessary and important legislation. The 
Honourable Member alluded to other areas. the Taxa­
tion Ordinance and the Local Improvement District Or­
dinance. We are actively working on both these pieces of 
legislation. and I hope that they will be presented in an 
acceptable form to the Members of the House as of the 
Spring Session. 

I was also very interested in many of the things that 
the Honourable Minister of Indian Affairs and Northern 
Development said to the House the other day. They are 
not any different than I th ink many Honourable Mem­
bers have been saying in this House for man~ 
years. I know I've said them in this House. and I've said 
them on the public platform . 

I agree wholeheartedly that we have to find a way to 
involve all the people of the Yukon in the government 
and the democratic process. I think this government 
has looked at many different ways of doing that ; in 
some areas, we've been eminently successful and some 
areas we haven't. I think we have a paper, the "Mean­
ingful Government" paper, which I hope that we will be 
able to make public at this session , before the federal 
negotiators and theC .Y .I. at this time. I think it is a good 
discussion draft for communication . and I only hope out 
of all the remarks that have been said in this House and 
were said by the Honourable Minister , that there will be 
this communication and dialogue that we all want so 
much for the future of the Yukon to begin immediately. 

But I did do a little research on how successful the 
Honourable Minister of Indian Affairs and Northern 
Development has been on the pol icies that he has been 
espousing across the country , and I went just to the local 
offices of the Yukon Branch of the Northern National 
Resources Environmental Branch of Indian and North­
ern Affairs in the Yukon. 

There's about 180 permanent positions, Mr. Speaker, 
in this Branch, and there are 18 of them presently filled 
by people of Indian ncestry. I said well you know, that 's 
probably a little unfair , because he has only been in the 
portfol io for six weeks, so let's go back to the portfolio 
that he used to be in before, because if these are his 
responsibilities, probably he's really in the couple of 
years he's been there, this attitude is reflected, and he 
was the Solicitor General and responsible for thf 
R.C.M.P. 

So I took a look at his success in that area, and it 
really wasn't all that good, Mr. Speaker. The R.C.M.P. 
staffing, the permanent staff personnel employed in the 
Yukon, shows that there are presently some 104 perma­
nent personnel, and of that, 1 is oflndian acestry at this 
time. So it's a little less interesting to hear the pot call 
the kettle black and vice-versa , Mr. Speaker. 

I am disturbed, and I don't make any bones about it, 
you know, I am scared of the directions that Land 
Claims are going. I'd just like to read to you a short 
statement that was published in the "DRUM", the In­
uvik paper, after the Dene Nat ion declaration and after 
the Dene Land Claims was presented to the govern­
ment. When the interviewer asked the Brotherhood 
President, George Erasmus, if this would be a sort of 
government separate from the Territorial government 
- "Do you foresee, in other words, the native of the 
Dene Nation would have it 's own government, separate 
from the Territories from that of the white people?" He 
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answered. Mr. Speaker. as in one clear word. "Pre­
cisely.·· 

I think that that should frighten all the people of the 
North who think that it is still possible for the Indian and 
while people. as they say in the song. to be able to "we 
can work it out" . I was glad that the Honourable 
Member from Kluane alluded to the situation as they 
find it in Rhodesia because I've been using these argu­
ments with the federal government. but nobody has 
ever been able. in those departments. to give me a sen­
sible and rational answer to the quest ions that I have 
asked. I th ink from my reading of history and my un­
derstanding of the Black movement in the United 
States. they were objecting to and they were against the 
separate but equal apartheid faciliti es in the United 
States. and they sa id that we have the ability , we have 
the people. we have all the rest to be able to get in with. 
absolutely into the system and get apart from the apar­
theid and the separate but equal facilities that are pres­
ent. I see the same thing as the Honourable Member 
says in the countries of the world of Africa , of South 
Africa and in Rhodesia. that they say no longer can we 
abide by. are we going to allow the separate but equal 
and apartheid ru le. Twenty years ago . Mr. Speaker, this 
was the case in the Yukon Territory. When I first came 
to this House. the concept of Indian Affairs and North­
ern Development was to go and take the children from 
the settlements and the homes and bring them into 
separate mission schools. Any of us who have been 
here for any length of time, still see the scars upon the 
people and the families that were treated in this man­
ner. As far as I'm concerned , it was inhumane and 
it was a blot to think that this happened only twenty 
years ago. No matter what people say, the concept now 
of integr ated schools within the community is a vast 
improvement on the capturing of Indian children and 
bringing them into an apartheid situation. Anbd now it 
seems, when we've finally made this improvement, that 
we want to go right back to the area that we've im­
proved so vastly on in the last few years. I can't accept 
that. the whole course of history cries against it Mr. 
Speaker , and how anybody can think that we should 
knowledgeably and wittingly rush into an area where 
we know that history has proven it would only be disas­
terous. This to me, is probably the most irresponsible 
action that one could take in the history of the Yukon, 
particularly at this time. I th ink, Honourable Members 
are honest when they say they are frightened at the 
direction that they are going and I think that the Hon­
ourable Members say they are correct when they will do 
anything in their power to get the dialogue and the 
communications going so that th is apartheid system of 
government will not happen in the Yukon Territory. 

And it 's interesting, Mr. Speaker, to look at the deal­
ings of the successive ministers of Indian Affairs and 
Northern Development over the years. I remember ar­
guing with dearold Art Lang, God bless his soul, when he 
told me that, to come back and argue with him when I 
got dry behind the ears, sonny boy, and there was no 
way that the guy who paid the piper called the tune. The 
federal government was paying the cost of the Yukon 
and by God we were going to l isten to what the federal 
ministers said and that 's all there was to it. That 's fine ! 
That was an honest approach if we knew where we 
stood. Then the next minister of course - when the 
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great economic development in the Yukon came about 
- and Jean Chretien who happened to be the next minis­
ter. And it was amazing ! The arguments went just 360 
degrees around and Jean Chretien said, · ·we can't allow 
you any kind of responsible government or any kind of 

. democratic institutions because you're just too darn 
rich and we can't allow you people to become the Kuwait 
of Canada. " So that was fine. At least we knew where we 
stood. Then of course, Judd Buchanan came along . 
Well . he didn't do or say anything, so we don 't know 
ctually where he stood on any issue at any time. Then we 
come to Mr. Allmand who at least presents us with an 
interesting proposit ion that if we involve all of the peo­
ples of the Yukon Government structures that we could 
then have responsible government. 

Well I think that the Honourable Member from 
Kluane alluded to it and I agree with her. I think she 
used even kinder terms than I would like. I find it rather 
a subtle form of political blackmail and I think it would 
be just like going over to the Indian people and saying 
unless you 're in favour of constitutional reform , then 
we'r e not ready to settle Land Claims. I think that we're 
all smarter than to accept this type of a statement from 
the Honourable Minister of Indian Affairs and Northern 
Development. I'm used to this kind of approach from 
the feds and it doesn't bother me too much. 

I know and I am convinced that if both of us, the Indian 
people and the white people of the Yukon can get the 
feds, Mr. Speaker, just out of our hair for a I ittle piece of 
time, that the majority of all Yukoners, regardless of 
race, are anxious to get about the business of running 
this Yukon together today for our children tomorrow. 

I believe that this is possible and it will happen and I 
can just see the Yukon and the history. We've finally 
been responsible , proven ourselves capable adminis­
trators. proven ourselves responsible. proven ourselves 
to raise most of our revenue, we've worked out our 
problems with the Indian people , because we know that 
we have to and we know that we are going to. We know 
that there's the majority of all Yukoners. regardless of 
race. that are determmed that we are not going to allow 
the Federal Government to split this country apart. 

We know what they are doing, we know what their 
game is, divide and conquer and we are too smart to fall 
for it and we're not going to and we're going to work it 
out and then all of this happens, and then we say, well 
can we have provincial status and responsible govern­
ment? 

I bet at that time, Mr. Speaker . that just appointed to 
the Ministry of Indian Affairs and Northern Develop­
ment will probably be a Canadian of Ukrainian ancestry 
or something of that nature and he'll take a look at the 
Yukon and say nowwhat excuse can we possibly use not 
to allow democratic type institutions and responsible 
government and provincial status in the Yukon. And 
they say , well goodness, you know, there 's an awful lot 
of Ukrainians who are driving trucks for White Pass in 
the Yukon and I don' t think that we can allow any kind of 
responsible government until their considerations are 
taken care of in any part of the democratic processes 
that the Yukon Territorial Government follows. 

The point I 'm trying to make. Mr. Speaker. is that 
every time we've had the ability to make constitutional 
progress, there's always been a monkey wrench thrown 



in the works, and I think the Federal Government, until 
the present administration is swept out from Ottawa, 
ar e going to keep the Yukon ex actly wher e they want it, 
right in their place, as a policy subservient to the Crown 
of Canada, and I think all Members agree that Yukoners 
can work things out a heck of a lot better than hav ing the 
involvement of those guys down in Ottawa and the fas­
ter they get rid of that bunch , the better we all are. 

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further replies to the 
Speech from the Throne? 

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse West? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: If there a re no furth er replies, 
Mr. Speaker, I would enjoy the prerogative of having 
the last word . 

We have heard from both our new Commissioner and 
our new Minister in the last couple of days, that the 
operative word is "communication". I've been in the 
communications business most of my life and I have 
always believed it was a two-way street. You can't 
communicate from one direction only. 

It has concerned me in the last few days, Mr. Speaker , 
that we a r e getting communication from one side only 
and that is the reason that I proposed- I gave Notice of 
Motion this morning that we endeavour to get a two­
-way dialogue in operation in this House and that we 
endeavour to hear some of the statements which a re 
be ing made in the media and via the Yukon network of 
the CBC, made also here to us because they concern us 
and they reflect upon us and we have not been given an 
opportunity to reply. 

I am very hoptful, Mr. Speaker, tha t by the process of 
this dialogue we may come to some understanding bet­
ween the nat1ve spokesmen and the Members in this 
House tha t some of the criticism which has been level­
led at Member s of this House may be clarified and that 
the Members will be given an opportunity to do so. 

But I don 't think that any more rehetoric on the floor 
of this House is going to get us anywhere until we pin it 
down and have it on record and have some logical re­
plies from the Members of this House to what is being 
said outside of this House. I had hoped that some 
Member of the Assembly this morning would give me 
the privilege of asking to proceed with the Motion today , 
rather than waiting the normal length of time, so that 
we could get it moving immediately. 

However, we have not missed that opportunity I be­
lieve, Mr. Speaker. I am only going to add that as of 
Monday, I hope that this House can say for the benefit of 
the Minister who is new and who is unfamiliar with our 
his tory and our operations her e, for his benefit we ar e 
conducting meaningful dialogue and that communica­
tion is definitely working in the Yukon. 

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker : The Honourable Member from Pelly 
River? 

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr . Speaker. I would move that 
Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair , and the House 
resolve into Committee of the Whole for the purpose of 
considering Bills. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there a seconder') 

Mr. Lengerke: I second that. 
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Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Pelly River. seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Ri verdale. tha t Mr. Speaker 
do now leave the Chair and the House resolve into 
Committee of the Whole for the purpose of consider ing 
Public Bills. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members : Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members : Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion is carried. 

M otion carried ! 

Mr. Speaker leav es the Chair 1 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order. 
and we ' ll have a brief recess. 

Recess 1 

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order. 
Before we break for lunch , I would like to just give you 

an idea of the agenda that we will be having this after­
noon. 

First of a ll ,.we have had two representations for wit­
nesses to appear before Committee. One of them is re­
garding the Insurance Ordinance, and the Insurance 
Ordinance will therefore be discussed on Monday. 

We have a lso had representation from the Hotelmen's 
Association to appear as witnesses for the Liquor Ordi­
nance. The date has not as yet been set but that will be 
fo llowing, probably about the m iddle of the week. 

It is our intention this afternoon to proceed with 
clause by clause discussion of Bills 1 and 7, 8 and 9. As 
there's only a few minutes left before the lunch break, 
we ... Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang : Excuse me , Mr . Chairma n, I 
thought the Insurance Ordinance was going to be held 
over until Monday until we get the necessary expertise 
here? 

Mr. Chairman: I'm sor ry , that's what I intended. 
What ... 

Hon. Mr. Lang: It 's Bill Number 7. 

Mr. Chairman: Oh, I 'm sorry , yes it is. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: Am I to assume that these witnesses 
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have already made arrangements with the Chair man of 
Committees for next week? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, they have. but it requ ires the 
concurrence of Comm ittee, of course. before they can 
appear. 

Mr. McCall: I was wondering, Mr. Chairman , if it is 
a t all possible. we could hold that maybe in the middle of 
the week a lso? 

Mr. Chairman: I beg your pardon ? 

Mr. McCall : The witnesses coming before the 
Committee later on in the week? 

Mr. Chairman: Which ones? 

Mr. McCall: The ones from the insurance, Mr. 
Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Why , Mr. McCall? Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman , it's my understand­
ing that the individual that is going to come up to help us 
discuss the Insurance Ordinance is prepared to come up 
on Monday, and I think we should make use of hisser­
vices while we can. 

Mr. McCall: Mr . Chairman, what I am concerned 
about at this point in time, if we are laying as ide Monday 
for the reading of the Insurance Bill, what if we are 
already in the middle of a Bill a lready being read. This 
is where my concern is, plus a number of other things. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall , this is a problem that is 
going to be constantly coming up in a rranging for wit­
nesses, and we have to arrange it as best we can, to 
accommoda te the wishes of Committee and the witnes­
ses who will be coming from out of town. 

Now, is it the wish of Committee that we have the 
Insurance Ordinance on Monday? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Then that will be on Monday , Mr. 
McCall. 

Mr. McCall: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I think that 
there are two Ordinances that are before Committee 
that will require witnesses, at least I'm positive that 
witnesses will request appearance before Committee, 
and I think they are the Liquor Ordinance and the Elec­
trical Protection Bill, and I was wondering with the 
concurrence of Committee whether we could keep these 
towards the end of the business of the House to make 
sure that a ll those bodies who would like to make rep­
resentations have had a chance to look at the legis lation 
and decide whether or not they want to make represen­
tations before Committee? 
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Mr. Chairman: Is that the wish of Committee, that 
the Electrical Protections Ordinance and the Liquor 
Ordinance be deferred until later conside ration? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: I gather from your remarks that one of 
the witnesses will be coming from out of town. Is Mr. 
Chairman prepared to te ll us who this witness is and 
where he comes from? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard , I believe you have the 
correspondence on this? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard : I 'm sorry, I don 't have that in­
formation before you; but the man's name is Kennedy 
and he is the head of Watt Insurance organization. 

Mr. Chairman: The Insurance Bureau of Canada. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard : The Bureau of Canada and they 
have been consulted in the preliminary drafting of this 
legisla tion for their expertise in the field and they have 
asked permission to be here when we discuss it and 
we're very grateful to have the ir ass istance at that 
time. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Thank you very much Mr. Chairman 
for the information, but I think I do understand Mr . 
McCall 's concern and I think in the light of what goes on 
he shouldn 't be a privilege of discussion in this House 
right now. I think we should consider his request, too, 
that we should maybe hold it after Tuesday or Wednes­
day. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: The reason that we're doing this 
is because Mr. Kennedy has a very busy itinerary and 
we are considered fortunate to get him here at the be­
ginning of our Session to go through the Bill with him. 
I'm not sure when he would be available at any later 
time. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, wouldn 't it be possible 
to proceed on Monday with the expert the government 
has arranged for and then also when the other witnesses 
are available and just not, you know, just not make any 
final decision on the Bill and go back to it again when the 
other witnesses are available? Surely we can accom­
modate all witnesses before we make a decision? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I have no objections, Mr. Chairman. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: I don't think we'll get through 
it in a day. 



Mr. Chairman: The Committee will now adjourn 
until I :30 p.m. 

1 Adjourned 1 

Mr. Chairman: I now call th is Committee to order. 
We will begin by clause by clause reading of Bill 

Number I. Err ~'rgency Medical Aid Ordinance. 
One 111: 

1 Reads Clause 1 1 1, 

Mr. Chairman: Two 1!1: 
1 Reads Clause ? 1 ! 1, 

Mrs. Watson ? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. Section 21 J 11 a 1. 
where it states "in any other jurisdict ion"- does that 
mean any other jurisdiction in the world? For example. 
a medical practitioner from one of the countries in 
Europe. the United States. Mexico. who are entitled to 
practice medicine in that jurisdiction . is that how 
sweeping it is? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard ? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. I would think 
that was the interpretation. The whole point of this Sec­
tion is that we are try ing to give some protection to 
qualified people to stop and assist, if there has been an 
accident or injury. and in other parts of the world this is 
becoming a moot point because of all these horrendous 
malpractice and legal suits which are taking place. 

I think there has to be some kind of inducement to 
citizens. as well as medical pr actitioners. that there's 
some protection under the law if they do assist, they' r e 
not going to be sued for doing so. 

Mr. Chairman : Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: A further question then. In Section 
31 II I b 1, where we are referring to a person other than a 
medical practitioner, now in what category would our 
lay dispensers and our paramedicals that we have now 
who ar e assist ng on their emergency calls. they would 
now be covered under 1 b 1. Does that mean up until this 
time, these people were open to court action if they 
thought that the services they gave was not properly 
given? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Probably that is the case. Your 
ambulance drivers or attendants who were not public 
health nurses, for example, could well have been in this 
position. This is a protection for them. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The Hon­
ourable Minister stated that she believes, to the first 
question that the Honourable Member from Kluane and 
the second question the same thing. Does she mean to 
say that this legislation had to be proved first in court 

bel'ore we can say this is what we'r e going to do'? 

Mr. Chairman : Mrs. Whyard? 

l-Ion. Mrs. Whyard: Mr . Chairman. I think that it's 
I ime that we got some assistance on this point. This is 
not really my Bill. It was Mr. Gillespie's legislation. but 
I would suggest that we ask !'or a legal interpretation il' 
the Members wish. 

Mr. Chairman: Okay. We will st<:md Bi ll Number I 
o\'er until a witness is available. 

lion. Mrs. Whyard: Could we not ha\'e l\1r. 
()'Donaghue. Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Certainly. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Adv1~or. we are - con­
cerning the Emergency Medical Aid Ordinance. could 
you interpret the intent of this Bill for the committee? 

The Legal Advisor : Yes. the intent of the Bill is to 
enable doctor s and other persons who are cal led to as­
sist a person who is in distress by reason of an accident 
or otherwise. to freely give aid without risk of being 
sued by that person afterwards because. by reason ol 
the emergency. they may not have the equipment. they 
may not have procedures available to them and they 
may do something that the person may think is slightly 
wrong medically but. unless it's gross carelessness on 
their part. then the person is protected completely from 
any legal action. This would include ambulance atten­
dants and such like people in an emergency situation. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: That's what I thought. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre. 

Mr. Mcintyre: Mr. Chairman. in this particular 
answer it seems to me that the protection of this Bill 
would be granted to a person who comes to aid in an 
emergency of this nature, but it seems to me that a 
person who is a paid ambulance attendant would not 
come under the protection of this Ordinance because he 
is doing something for which he is paid. 

The Legal Advisor: Perhaps that could be argued, 
but he is giving it involuntarily and he is not pa id to 
render medical assistance; he is paid to drive the peo­
ple , person, from where he picks him up to the hospital. 
so it is outside of his normal scope of duties but person­
ally he could not be sued. 

Mr. Chairman: This poses the question to my mind , 
Mr. Legal Adv isor , that doesn 't this constitute assault 
because there is not consent necessarily involved? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, sir, it might. 

Mr. Chairman: Would it be covered under this Ordi­
nance? 

The Legal Advisor: You cannot sue him for neglig­
ence. Perhaps you could sue him for assault. 
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Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard'? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chai rman. I 'd like some legal dis­
sertation on the definition of gross negligence. 

Mr. Legal Advisor : It is very difficult to say what 
gross negligence is. It ·s what a judge says it is. and the 
judicial inter pretation var ies from case to case. 

The particular place where it comes to be discussed is 
commonly where a driver of a car voluntaril y brings a 
passenger in his car. and causes an accident. A pas­
senger cannot sue the driver for ordinary negligence. 
only for gross neg I igence. 

Now, I think the House can understand that it var ies 
from case to case what a judge interprets gross negl ig­
ence to be. If the driver falls asleep after a long journey. 
one judge will say that's gross negligence because he 
should have known in advance that he was going to fall 
asleep. Another judge is I ikely to say in a different case 
in a different province. well who can anticipate that 
they will happen to fall asleep. lie didn't set out to fall 
asleep. it was an accident. just a sl ight accident. so 
there is no real answer to it because it varies from point 
to point. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson'? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. maybe I cou ld ad­
dress the question to the Legal Advisor. I'm going back 
to the paid ambulance attendant. Is it part of the paid 
ambulance attendant's job requirements to give som! 
first aid at the scene of an accident, and al so now your 
lay dispensers, who are paid people hired by the De­
partment of Health, who are taken by the ambulance 
people who have had no training, a lot them , in first aid, 
who drive the ambulances in the smaller communities. 
They get a lay dispenser to go with them if there isn't a 
registered nurse available, a Publ ic Health nurse. 

Now, will these people because they are paid, 
have then· protection under (a l or 1 b l . or because of 
their job requirement will they not be protected? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: No, Mr. Chairman, in my respect­
ful opinion they would be protected. If the Honourable 
Member would cast his attention to the difference in the 
drafting between (a l and ( b l, you will see that the med­
ical practitioner voluntarily, and without expecta­
tion of compensation, he's protected . 

The ambulance attendant is a person other than a 
medical practitioner. He renders it voluntarily , and the 
words "without expectation of compensation" is not 
included in r espect of the ambulance attendants. Volun­
tarily means willingly, so that the compensation really 
doesn't affect the ambulance driver or anyone el se, 
other than the medical practitioner. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. that clouds it a little 
bit more then, there is no protection for the people , the 
lay dispensers and the ambulance attendants, there 
isn't any, because they are not medical practitioners. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: The extent of the Section, Mr. 
Chairman reads, " where. in respect of a person who is 
ill or injured. as a result of an accident, a person other 
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than a medica l practitioner r enders first aid. and the 
assistance is r endered at the scene of the accident. .. 
then that person is protected unless through gross neg­
ligence. 

There is no question in respect to the ambulance at­
tendant oft he ex pression ··expectation of compensation 
or reward". There's two different sections. one for doc­
tors and one for the other people. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Mr. Chairman. it seemc to me that 
the ambulance attendant who is paid to render f ir st aid 
as part of his duty. would not be protected. He would be. 
probably would also be gu illy if he did nothing. He has to 
do something, he's compelled by the ver y nature of his 
job to do it, and I don't see how this wording would 
protect him. It's part of his duty. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Perhaps, Mr. Chairman. i f it 
says voluntarily it says willingly. The Section might be 
easier to read if in the third I ine of paragraph 1 b 1 it was 
broken into a sub-paragraph I c 1, then paragraph t b 1 
would just be a short par agraph , ··A person other than a 
medical practitioner voluntarily renders emergency 
first aid assistance' ·. and then t c 1 at the side of the page. 
and 1 c 1, ··That assistance is rendered at the immediate 
scene of the accident or emergency". 

There's no question in my mind but that the word 
"voluntarily.' means " willingly" and is not related to 
compensation. The opposite of voluntarily is " involun­
tarily" . 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: If he wasn't an ambulance driver, and 
he came upon the scene of the accident, i f it wasn't part 
of his job he might drive right by. You know. it doesn't 
necessarily imply that he is going to stop, but because 
he is an ambulance driver he is not doing it voluntarily. 
He's paid to do it. 

Mr. Legal Ad .. isor : Mr. Speaker, I don't know what 
ambulance driven are paid to do or not to do, perhaps 
the Chairman might know that. but what we are talking 
about is emergency first aid assistance. 

Mrs. Watson: Yt •s. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: And I was not aware that am­
bulance driver s were paid to render t ir st aid assistance. 
So far as my recollel'lion goes, the impetus for the first 
time consideration ro•md of this particular Bill , came 
from that area in the first instance. as to what was the 
responsibility in the event of a personal suit by a person 
who was an ambulance driver or other person, or 
perhaps a staff member who renders first aid to another 
staff member, were they protected. and if they were 
negligent, they were not protected, and if they went 
beyond certain limits. they would be giving medical 
attention which they werC' unlicensed to give. 

In addition to that then on consideration it turned out a 
doctor coming through this Tt'rritory. an American say. 
who wasn't licensed to practice in Canada or the Terr it­
ory. might be committing an offence if he rendered aid 



to a per-son. 
The impetus so far as my recollection is that it did not 

come from the medical practitioners in the Territory, 
but on the original time round, about three years ago 
when it was discussed, the doctors in Whitehorse said 
they did not need the legislation , because they always in 
fact did render emergency first aid without question of 
fee, and they would face up to the risks if they didn 't 
think they were much. 

The second time 'round more recently when it was 
being discussed, it was discussed as a result of impetus 
from the ambulance driver area -- who specifically I 
don't know, so then we researched the legislation. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that is correct, be­
cause I know in my community, and in some of the 
communities on the North Alaska Highway, where the 
people who drive the ambulance are people who are not 
trained to give first aid. 

I also am aware of the fact that the Public Health 
Nurse is not required to go on an emergency call with 
the ambulance, so a Jot of these ambulance drivers who 
are being paid, it 's not part of their job, they're mem­
bers of our Territorial Highways Branch. They are 
paid, though, when they take the ambulance run, as it's 
called. The Public Health Nurse doesn't have to accom­
pany them. You have two lay people embarking upon an 
ambulance call to pick up someone at an accident, and 
they're very reluctant to go, because they don't know 
what they are going to find at the accident. They don't 
know what kind of treatment or assistance they're to 
give, and this is the question that's being raised by these 
men right now. 

Look , you know, are we sticking our neck out, by 
driving that ambulance? Could we be sued? I think this 
whole thing should be taken back and looked at. The 
ambulance drivers in the Whitehorse area are a differ­
ent kettle of fish. I think there is a requirement for them 
to have some emergency first aid and this type of thing, 
but the fellows who are almost-- who are assuming the 
responsibility for ambulance driving in the outlying 
areas, many of them do not have this training, and I 
think the Minister of Health will have to look at the 
responsibilities of the Public Health Nurse, as far as 
accident calls are concerned. 

I'm quite sure that the Public Health Nurse is not 
required to accompany the ambulance on an 
emergency call. Now, is the lay dispenser? Now they go 
pick up the lay dispenser quite often, just to have some­
one. Now, is the lay dispenser open to court action? I 
think this really has to be looked at. 

When you say voluntary, these men are volunteering 
in a way to take the ambulance, but they're still being 
paid by the hour. So it's for their protection I'm sure, 
that this section is in here, and if we're going to protect 
them, let's make sure we do protect them, and maybe 
we should sort out this , who accompanies the ambul­
ance call. 

And another thing, when we are at the ambulance 
situation , is an ambulance required to go out when a 
person is dead? Is this why we have ambulances? This 
problem, this is the problem -- these are the types of 
things that have to be ironed out. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr . Chairman. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I'm dire.:-ting the 
question to anyone who has some answers. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: We're looking at a three­
pronged question here as the Honourable Member 
knows. Ambulances are not under my jurisdiction. nor 
are Public Health Nurses, and I don 't know why they 
aren't all in one jurisdiction but they aren't, and at the 
moment, ambulances come under Local Government. 
and perhaps the Minister would like to give some 
clarification on what drivers have first aid and who 
don't and why. 

I have no compunction at all about this Bill. 1t seems 
to me to provide protection for those who need it. and in 
my interpretation, the ambulance dri\'er is hired to 
drive the vehicle under the terms of his employment in 
my colleague's department, and therefore is covered by 
this Section where he is rendering first aid which he is 
not being paid to render, just like any other citizen stop­
ping at the side of the road to help. 

If that's a simpl istic point of view, then I'm wrong, but 
that is my understanding of the purpose of this Bill. so 
that anyone who comes along and does the Good 
Samaritan bit, whether they are in a uniform or whether 
they are driving a government vehicle or whether they 
are driving their own car, will have some kind of protec­
tion for the serv ice they render. 

I know from my own personal experience that most 
members of the public are getting so constrained by the 
threat that what they might do is going to be wrong , that 
we are leaning over backwards not to do it , and in many 
cases, more recently in ll:lrge cities as you a ll know, Mr. 
Chairman , people are dying because bystanders are 
afraid to lift a finger to help them. 

And this is the kind of situation I don't want to see in the 
Yukon. I have one member of my family, Mr. Cha ir­
man , who is alive today because a bystander came 
along the highway after an accident and actually moved 
her before the vehicle fell over on where she had been. 
You know, and if that person had stopped and said no, 
I'm not going to touch anything because I may not be 
under the right section of the ordinance, by gosh, we 
would all have some very serious thoughts about it. 

Now , the Honourable Member is far more familiar 
with ambulance drivers in her area than I am , but my 
interpretation, and I would like Mr. Legal Advisor to 
assist me, is that this section is referring to people who 
stop to give first aid who are not being paid to give that 
first aid and therefore we are covering them. I would 
still say, Mr. Chairman, that the ambulance driver is 
hired to drive the vehicle, in fact he is on duty as a 
member of the road crew probably, he 's not even dig­
nified by the name of ambulance driver- he 's on call and 
he's called out to drive a vehicle and he 's not being paid 
to provide first aid. Is that the interpretation? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, this is a 
voluntary act, it is not part of his duty. The question of 
money doesn't enter into v~luntary end of the section. 
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The number of cases c1ted 1n this. the standing case 
which occured when the research of the bill occured in 
Montreal where a doctor was chargeci with criminal 
negligence for allowing a person to bleed to death in a 
corridor of a hospital because he wouldn't touch the 
patient. He was charged with criminal negligence and 
he was found not guilty because he hadn't volunteered 
his ser vices. The reason he didn't volunteer his services 
was because he didn't want to get involved. because it 
was a difficult case and something might have gone 
wrong. This is what we are attempting to cure- to give 
them the legal protection. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 

Mr. Fleming: Yes. Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to 
rise to verify what the Honourable Member from 
Kluane has spoken about. for the problem arose in the 
case of the nurse not going on the ambulance call and I 
will verify that this is very true because we had the 
problem, from the federal point of view of the medical 
health services here and the director , this is the case. 
the nurse does not necessarily have to go. So, therefore. 
it is sometimes definitely the ambulance driver or 
somebody that does have to r ender some sort of first aid 
to get that person to a hospital. The only thing that 
bothers me is that this medical practitioner voluntarily 
renders what- as I think I understand it - don't really 
cover the person that might be paid for this job but is ­
would it not be very simple to state that it does cover 
such people as paid. Other than an ambulance driver, 
it's not only an ambulance driver that might be paid: it 
might be anybody that might be paid for something but 
he can still give- you know that's what this Bill is for. 
It's not to cover any individual that gives a first aid on 
the- anywhere it is needed and necessary. Am I right? 
Mr. Chairman? 

The Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, that is not the 
intention of the Bill. The intention of ths Bill is to cover 
people who do it outside of their duties. If it is their duty 
to do it and they are not allowed to be negligent. This 
permits, without suit, negligence, ordinary negligence 
that cannot be sued for , but gross negligence can be 
sued for. If that person is employed and it is part of his 
duty to deliver first aid or emergency first aid , then he 
must do it properly, and if he doesn't do it properly, he 
can be sued. That's the ordinary law. That's what he's 
paid to do. So an ordinary doctor who is called into an 
accident to one of his patients, in the patient's home , and 
who is negligent, is liable for the negligence. It's only 
the person who is not paid for it and who renders it 
outside of the course of their duty, that 's protected by 
the bill. That's the intention , Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I really think that 
makes it worse. You're not going to have anyone, if 
they 're paid to do it, because you do have some ambul­
ance drivers and I believe the L.I.D. at Watson Lake has 
someone who is in charge of the ambulance and they 
have to have some first aid. And so, some requirements 
are going to have to have some emergency treatment. 
Now are these people open to a court action for neglig-
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ence? They're not medical practitioners. This is the 
point we're trying to make. Everyone who has the right. 
or is paid to render firs t aid isn't a medical practitioner. 
And the people who are not doing it voluntarily, they're 
paid for it. and I really think that we should review , first 
of all. who - what the terms of reference of our ambul­
ance drivers are. The ones who are designated as am­
bulance drivers, what requirements they have as part 
of their function in their duties. Lay dispensers again. 
Now lay dispensers do not have to be a trained nurse and 
they are often called out on an accident and yet lay 
dispensers are paid people. Now will they be covered 
under this? I think these are the things- I am not disag­
reeing with the philosophy of the Bill, I think it's abso­
lutely necessary. But if we're going to put the Bill in. 
let's make sure we're doing what we want to do so that 
we're not leaving any loopholes for it. And really, I don't 
think that the Government people realize how many 
different classes of medical practitioners you have in 
the Yukon Territory. You've got hears drivers , ambul­
ance drivers. lay dispensers and so on and we have -
even looking at para-professionals or paramedicals, so. 
you know, really , are these people all considered medi­
cal practitioners? 

Mr. Legal Adviser: No, Mr. Chairman. they're not 
considered medical practitioners. 

Mrs. Watson: I hope not. 

Mr. Legal Adviser: The purpose of the Bill is not to 
relieve a person who is paid to do a job from doing a 
proper job, and in the case of a nurse and what have you , 
employed for a certa in purpose, if they do the job neg­
ligently, then they and their employer is liable because 
one must think and have regard for the protection of the 
patient. The patient is entitled to the best care it is 
possible to give him, having regard to the circums­
tances and if a person is paid to deliver that care and 
does not deliver that care, I think it is proper that the 
law should not be changed , that the person who delivers 
the improper care and the employer of that person, 
which would be the Territorial or the Federal govern­
ment as the case might be, should be liable for the 
damages which ensue. 

So that would be changing the basic law in a way in 
which was not the purpose of this Bill , Mr. Chairman, 
which is limited to a very, very narrow field indeed. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman . 
I think I may be able to clarify some of the argument 

about ambulance drivers and volunteers. Up to a few 
years ago, people working for the Territorial Govern­
ment, they were deducted the time off of being a volun­
teer ambulance driver , whic h created a lot of hardship 
on some people. I twas through union negotiation that 
those people achieved not losing any time on their job. 

So I think you can still say that those people are volun­
teers driving those ambulances, even though they do get 
paid on their regular jobs. They do not get paid for 
driving that ambulance. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 



Mr. McCall: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I sympathize with the Honourable Member to my left, 

as to the problems that she may foreseeWhat I'm con­
cerned about is if we start separating and pinning down 
certain functions as to the ambulance drivers, which 
most of them are voluntary, I think we would be moving 
into an area of even bigger problems. 

I think Section (b) here or sub-section ( b l is very 
explanatory and I think it should be kept in that type of 
form under the legislation as I can see some very dif­
ficult areas ahead. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. 
Legal Adviser did answer my question with his previous 
comments but I certainly appreciate again the concern 
of the Member from Kluane and she is really looking for 
a better interpretation, I think. 

What I would like to ask Mr. Legal Adviser is- is it 
common among the Provinces to have this type of Good 
Samaritan legislation and did you draw any of your 
ideas from some of that legislation? 

Mr. Legal Adviser: Mr. Chairman, it's gradually 
becoming common. It could hardly be said to be com­
mon as yet. There are various societies who put it for­
ward . The one that we looked to was Alberta and we 
widened Alberta's beyond what Alberta had, so our Bill 
is wider than Alberta's. 

There are several American jurisdictions that have 
this general type of legislation as well and in the United 
States the push for the legislation is from the medical 
profession itself, as they have a very heavy burden to 
bear in the Jaw courts in that particular jurisdiction. 

Mr. Chairman: It's the lawyers that put them there, 
Mr. Legal Adviser. 

Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Tayor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'm having 
some difficulty in l(b), line 4, where we are talking 
about that assistance is rendered at the immediate 
scene of the accident or emergency. 

The very nature of our Territory and remoteness of 
some areas in the Territory, particularly along our 
highways, and perhaps in some of the camps throughout 
the Territory, create unusual and unique situations in 
terms of evacuating people who have been injured or for 
one reason or another are incapacitated . 

I 'm considering the case of, for instance, a pilot, who 
has come across a situation whereby a person has been 
injured in a camp, a remote camp or something of this 
nature, attempts to give first aid, then attempts to 
evacuate this person , and a pilot runs into perhaps bad 
weather trying to get this patient to a properly 
recognized and adequate medical facility. 

Would the pilot then be liable or coule he be consi­
dered to have created gross negligence simply by the 
fact that he was unable to complete a chore that he had 
set out to do. 

Also, we have the case on the highways where- and I 
know I have and many others living in what we call the 
hinterland - have come across accidents where some 
very terrible things have occurred and you really don 't 
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know what to do. You try to do your best and in some 
cases you may put this person or persons in your own 
vehicle and start them in towards a community where 
there is medical assistance available or where there is 
an airplane that you could evacuate these people by that 
means. Perhaps these people get relayed in some­
where, are each one ofthe people that relay these people 
to the medical facil ity . are they liable, are they pro­
tected under the Ordinance, or what is the situation in 
the scenario that I've generally given? 

Mr. Legal Adviser: Mr. Chairman, I would imagine 
that in the case of a pi lot who picked the person up and 
he's travelling in a plane , and then an emergency hap­
pens like the person cannot breathe or something, that 
is the emergency he's facing, not the scene of the acci­
dent itself. It's accident or emergency. 

I would prefer to look at it and consider it because. 
reading it over here, it seems to me that perhaps con­
sideration should be given to the word voluntarily 
in paragraph (b) . I don't know whether we can take it 
out or not to eliminate the doubt which has been created 
in the mind of some members, and whether or not in 
view of what the Honourable Member has just said, the 
expression " immediate scene of the accident" might 
not be too restrictive, in view of the fact that he points 
out that a person is going to be moved even if it 's only 
half a mile into possibly a house. That may not be the 
immediate scene of the accident but cons ideration 
could be given to something like the immediate scene of 
the accident or a place as near as practicable to that 
place, something like that. 

Perhaps when the discussion is ended, it it ended 
without being going full through, the government would 
be prepared to look at it and see can it meet with the 
wishes of the Members and perhaps improve the draft­
ing. 

Mr. Chairman: Is it the wish of Committee that we 
stand this Bill over until the Government has brought in 
this revision? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, can I get the 
feeling of the Committee of the House? It was the feeling 
of the Government that they want this as wide open as 
possible and not restricted. We were trying to make it as 
open as possible. Is that the feeling of the Members of 
the Committee? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes, I think it is, Mr. McKinnon. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman: We'll ... 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I would agree with the 
Legal Adviser that (a), (b) and section (c) would be 
wuch easier to interpret. 

Mr. C:1airman: Mrs. Whyard, would you bring a 
written amendment? 

Hon. Mrs. Whya_rd: Mr. Chairman, this will have to 
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be revi<wed 1>:-· the Legislative Committee before it 
come' oack. 

Mr. Chairman: Then we'll stand the Bill ove r. 
We will proceed with the reading of Bill Number 3 and 

for that purpose, I have asked the Assistant Commis­
sioner, Mr. Merv Miller to attend as a witness. Does that 
su it the wishes of Committee? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Bill Number 3 is an Ordinance Re­
specting the Institute of Chartered Accountants. 

For the recordd . Mr. Miller is now attending as wit­
ness. 

One (1 1: 

·Reads Clause 1 11 1' 

Mr. Chairman: Is the re any debate on the Ordi­
nance? Section 1 is carried. 

Two(ll: 

' Reads Clause 21111 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, this is a dumb ques­
tion. but I'm sure everybody is sort of wondering why is 
it ··any province or territory of Canada or of Ber­
muda"? 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, there's an a rrangement 
between the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Canada and of the Provinces of Canada with an Institute 
in Bermuda. It 's the one exception. 

Mr s. Watson: Reciprocal type of .... 

Mr. Miller: Recipr ocal type arrangements. 

Mrs. Watson: Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman: Section 2 carried? 
Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Three (1): 

r Reads Clause 3 r 1 1 1 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: I would just like to ask the witness, 
Mr. Chairman, the legislation has been brought forward 
as a result of requests by chartered accountants operat­
ing in the Yukon , is this mainly the thrust behind it, or is 
it really a strictly government action? 

Mr. Miller: No , Mr . Chairman, this has been 
brought forward , based on representation of the Char­
tered Accountants who are operating within the Yukon 
Territory. 

Mr. Chairman : Three (2): 

1 Reads Clause 31211 

Section 3 carried. Agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Four (ll: 

rr eads Clause 411 JfaJ J 

(Reads Clause 4 (1 )( b l l 

(Reads Clause 4 (1 l ( c l l 

(Reads Clause 4 (1 l ( d l l 

Section 4 carried? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Five (1 l : 

rReads Clause 511 Ji a ll 

(Reads Clause 5(1! ( ( b l l 

!Reads Clause 5(1 l ( c l l 

Clear? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Six ( 1): 

r Reads Clause 6r 1 11 

r Reads Clause 61211 

r Reads Clause 61311 

r Reads Clause 6 r 41; 

(Reads Clause 6 r 51 1 

(Reads Clause 6(6)) 

Clear? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 
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Hon. Mr. Taylor There is just one question, Mr. 
Chairman, on subsection 6(2). " A majority of the coun­
cil shall be members resident with in the Territory". 
Why was it suggested that the Council should consist of 
anybody who is not a resident of the Territory? 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, one principle that the 
Chartered Accountants use is that anybody operating 
within the Territory and using the designation " C.A .", 
regardless of where their residence must be - or where 
their residence is - must be registered with this Insti­
tute , so they become a full member by registration, but 
this is restricting the number of members who can be 



from outside the Territory on the Counci l. 

Mr. Chairman : Clear? 

Seven (1 1: 

1 Reads Clause ?1 1 1 1 

Mr. Chairman : Is Section 7 clear? 
Eight tll: 

1 Reads Clause X r 1 ' , 

1 Reads Clause 8 1 'l 1 

1 Reads Clause 813 1 ' 

1 Reads Clause 8t4 11 

Mr. Chairman: Is Section 8 cle<Jr ? 

Some Members: Clear . 

Mr. Cha irman : Section 911 1: 

1 Reads Clause 911 1 1 

1 Reads Clause 91211 
1 Reads Clause 913 11 

Mr. Chairman: Is Section 9 clear? 
Ten t1 1: 

1 Reads Clause lOt 11 1 

1 Reads Clause 101211 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman. We speak in 
1 a 1 and (b), we have a situation which could create in 
fact a c losed shop. Are there any safeguards to protect 
the chartered accountant who wishes to become a Fel­
low, and is by his very- what's the words - by his 
ab ility and experience and his credentials entitled to 
become a Fellow, is there any way he could still be 
refused for any reason , if the group of accountants felt 
that they just s imply didn't want him the re? 

Mr. Miller: Mr. -~hai(_m~n, the_ int~nt of Subsecti_on 
(2) is to have the ab1ltty w1thm the mstltute to recogmze 
any member who has done conspicuous service to the 
profession by offering him the additional t_itle o~ "fel­
low". He then is a ble to carry the des1gnat10n of 
"F.C.A." instead of just "C.A." So it's an honorary 
position. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Cha irman, that wasn't my 
question. My question relates to l(a) and (b). Where 
this person is entitled to be registered as a member of 
the Institute and so forth. Do I read it to say though that 
the Institute could refuse him membership, notwith­
standing he possesses the credentials of membership? 
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Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman. the practice in a ll the 
provinces is. if you are a member of any provincial 
institute. and this would apply now in the Yukon after 
passage of this Bill. if you're a member of the Yukon 
Chartered Accountants Institute. you are automatically 
granted. upon registrat ion. payment of appropriate 
fees. a s imilar standing in any prov ince in which you 
wish to practice. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman. what I'm getting 
at. is there a compulsion with an applicant hav ing. 
again, I use the word credentials. hav ing proven he is 
indeed eligible to become a member of the ins titute. is 
there not . or ought not there to be a compulsion that he is 
a llowed to join? In other words. I'm thinking of the 
s ituation whereby a chartered accountant in Dawson 
that nobody really in Whitehorse thought a great deal of. 
and yet if he did possess t he qualifications that he could 
join, he couldn't be shut out . This is the type of situation 
I'm talking about. 

Mr. Miller: That is correct. Mr. Chairman: he can­
not be shut out if he holds his degree in good standing. 
meets the terms and condit ions. In other words. he is 
prepared to register with the society or with the insti­
tute, pay hi s annual dues and be a fellow who is pre­
pared to follow the professional conduct ru les: there is 
no way he will be shut out or can be shut out. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Okay , thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Is Section 10 carried ? 

Some Members: Carried. 

Mr. Chairman: Eleven 1one1. 
, Reads Clause 1 I 1 I 1 1 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if we 
could have clarification on the use of the word "cer­
tified"? 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, I'm not sure jus t where 
the Honourable Membe r is referring to in the text, but 
there used to be a society or institute in Canada operat­
ing under the name "Certified P ublic Accountant". 
Now, they were primarily operating in the Ontario reg­
ion about seven - six or seven years ago. There was an 
arrangement made between the Char tered Accoun­
tants and the Certified Public Accountants under which 
they melded or merged their two institutes with those 
people who were in practice at the time as certified 
publ ic accountants automatically receiving the desig­
nation "Chartered Accountant" . As such , there are no 
Certified Publ ic Accountants or any institutes of Cer­
tified P ublic Accountants in Canada. There are CPA's 
or Certified Public Accountants in the U.S. but not in 
Canada. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard : Thank you, Mr. Chairman , 
that's what I wanted to hear. 

Mr. Chairman: Is Section Eleven carried? 
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Some Members: Agreed . 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr . Cha irman : Twel·:e tOnet. 
, Reads Clau::w 12' 1 ' 

Mr. ChaJr iiHln: Is Section Tweln• clear '? 

Some Members: Clear. 

Mr . Chairman: Thirteen. 
1 Reads Clause 13 1 

Mr. Chairman: Is Section Thirteen clear'' 

Some Members: Clear . 

Mr. Chairm<~ n : Fourteen 1 One 1. 

1Reads Clause 1~ 1 1 1 

l-Ion. Mrs. Why<~ rd: Could we be told where the regis­
ter wi ll be kept? 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman. it will be kept at the head 
office of the Council which will be contained in the 
bylaws which will be available. 

Mr. Chairman : Section Fourteen clear'' 

Some Members : Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Section Fifteen tOnet. 
1 Reads Section 1.5, 1 ' 

Mr. Chairman: Section 15 clear'' 

Some Members : Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Section Sixteen 1 One I. 
r Reads Section 16r 1 1 

Mr. Chairman: Clear? 

Some Members : Clear . 

l-Ion. Mrs. Whyard: May I ask a general question? 

Mr. Chairman: If it is the consent of the Committee. 
the general questions should commence with the read­
ing of the fi rst clause. Mrs. Whyard. 

Hon. Mrs. Wh yard : It's so peaceful here. J'vlr. 
Chairman, I'm nearly asleep and I lost out on SectiOn. 
It 's not an important question. Mr. Chan·man. 

1 Reads Preamble 1 

Mr. Chairman: Is Bill Number 3 carried? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Should I report the Bill without 
amendment? 
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Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: We'll proceed to Bill Number 4. An 
Ordinance to Amend the Insurance Premium Tax Ordi­
nance. 

Mr. Chairman: One. 
1 Reads Section 1 1 

Mr. Chairman: Is there any debate'? 

1 Reads Preamble 1 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke'? 

Mr. Lengerke : I move that Bill Number 4 be moved 
out of Committee without amendment. 

Mr. McCall : I'll second that. 

Mr. Chairman: Are we agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed . 

r Motion carried ! 

Mr. Cha irman: We will proceed to Bill Number 6. 
Mrs. Whyard? 

l-Ion. Mrs. Whyard : Mr. Chairman. could I suggest 
that if we are clear ing away the small easy ones, we 
might move on to Bill Number 9 - 8. the High ways 
Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Do you want to consider tha t before 
Bill Nu mber 6? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: You want to get into the Liquor 
Ordinance? 

Mr. Chairman: No, no, no. no. Bill Number 6. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Oh . thank you . Mr. Cha irman. 
Quite right. 

Mr . Chairman: Section One. 
1 Reads Clause 1 1 

Ms. Millard : I think for the edification of the Assem­
bly. this Committee. we should have some kind of i~eaof 
what a juvenile judge does. in companson to a Just1ce of 
the Peace. Is it possible to have the Legal Adv1ser g1ve 
us some kind of outline? 

Mr . Cha irman: Mr. Legal Adv isor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, a juvenile judge 
has. by law. all the authority that a Magistrate wou ld 
have in dealing with juveniles when the Mag1strate IS 

dealing with that kind of a case. The total power ~s not 
always exercised, but it's there. An Ordmary Just1ce of 
the Peace does not have any authority to deal with 
juveniles. other than to remand them for the first time 
around. That's the difference. 

So what we have gone onto in Whitehorse for quite a 



few year s now , is to have one of the Justices of the Peace 
act on a Sessional basis as the main Juvenile Court 
Judge closely with the Magistrate but trying all the 
cases wh ich are assigned to her by the Magistrate. This 
is a common practice now. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor : Mr. Chairman, what concerns me 
here is perhaps the fact that Justices of the Peace 
throughout the Territory are often- they have limited 
training, and perhaps that a Justice of the Peace in this 
case does not have the understanding or the techniques 
involved in dealing with juvenile offenders. 

It occurs to me that a Juvenile Court Judge certainly 
has been obviously selected for their abi lity to under­
stand law and perhaps too, in this case, to understand 
the juveniles and the social effects of whatever has oc­
curred, and I am a little hesitant about approving this 
Ordinance. I've got mixed emotions on it. 

I th ink that perhaps you are extending a greater 
amount of authority than ought to be extended to un­
trained J.P.'s for instance in the juvenile field, and I 
would like to hear some argument from someone on this 
subject. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, the power to 
make this appointment has always existed, but it has 
been exercised by the Government of Canada until now. 
It was overlooked during the transmission of the ad­
ministration of justice in 1971 that , under the provisions 
of the Juvenile Delinquents' Act of Canada, the power 
had been previously exercised and one, occasionally 
two, Justices of the Peace were authorized to deal with 
juveniles and an appointment was made in each of the 
mining districts, the mining district of Dawson, the min­
ing district of Mayo and the mining district of Dawson 
and the mining district of Whitehorse. 

Now, some time after 1971, the administration de­
cided that they would attempt to have one particular 
justice given some training, who would understand the 
needs of juveniles, although we didn 't have the re­
sources to employ a full-time lawyer for the purpose 
and, as the House knows, Mrs. Christiansen was given 
that appointment, but that appointment was made at 
the request of the Government of the Territory, by the 
Government of Canada, who had the jurisdiction to do 
it. 

When it came to making the next appointment, then it 
was suddenly noted that this government did not have 
the authority, legally, to make the appointment and had 
to ask the Government of Canada to make it. This drew 
the matter to attention, and then this Government re­
quested the Government of Canada to appoint Mrs. 
Tanner as a Juvenile Court Judge, her first appoint­
ment being as a Justice of the Peace, so this is not 
intended to expand the power in any way - merely to 
repatriate to the Territory, the power which the Territ­
ory always should have had from the transfer administ­
ration of justice in 1971. 

I 'm just saying that we have th is, not as a full-time 
appointment, but as a long-term appointment, expres­
sing that this is the policy followed in the administration 
of the courts at this time. It is not intended to have a 
Justice of the Peace outside Whitehorse, at least at pre-
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sent. doing very much in the way of Juvenile Judge 
Courts. but it is necessary to have one person with the 
basic authority to sta rt the case off in each of these 
districts , so the appointment comes up and it will be just 
one single J.P. in each of the main dis tricts who will be 
given this authority. as required. but exercised subject 
to the Magistrate's supervision and will only be for a 
limited purpose. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman. I'm still not satis­
fied. I mean, we are asked here to approve a piece of 
legislation which I think is desperate ly important. and I 
can see a situation whereby you could have a J.P. or 
several J.P. 's, for that matter , in the sma ller com­
munities. 

Again, I state perhaps without having a lega l back­
ground or the other backgrounds that may be involved 
in dealing with juvenile offenders, and I'm just a little 
afraid that perhaps one of these people could be so 
biased, as a result of this lack of understanding gener­
ally in dealing with juveniles. and take them as a - or 
juvenile offenders, I should say - and take them in 
block as being a bunch of very bad young people. and 
would bias their decisions when these juvenile offenders 
came before them in court. 

This is where I'm having my difficulty. It seems to me 
that there ought to be somewhere in this Ordinance a 
compulsion again upon the Commissioner who can 
make the appointment by order, to satisfy himself that 
some very specific requirements are met before that 
individual J.P. was indeed appointed. I see it as a 
safeguard, because I'm concerned about the court, the 
relationship between the court and the juvenile offen­
der. 

Sociologically, it's a very delicate area, and a wrong 
move by perhaps a Justice of the Peace upon a juvenile 
offender could well change the course of the juvenile's 
life in the future, if that juvenile has been wrongly dealt 
with. 

There are social implications here that I'm sure most 
Members could appreciate, and here is where I'm hav­
ing my difficulty. I don 't think, at this point in time. 
unless as I say I can have some very solid assurances 
that this type of thing would be done, that I could in 
honesty and in moral conscience, vote for this piece of 
legislation at this time. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, I cannot see the 
government giving the assurance that only legally qual­
ified people will be appointed as Juvenile Court judges. 
We don't have the amount of juvenile work to justify it, 
and we don 't have the money to pay such a person what 
it would require. 

We require the person has been some t ime as a Justice 
of the Peace, works closely with the Magistrate for a 
period either before or immediately after first ap­
pointment and then , of course, as the Honourable 
Member knows, they have experience with children, 
because most J.P. 's have been children themselves. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Well , Mr .... 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 
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Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman. I must rise in support 
of the Member from Watson Lake in this debate. I really 
feel that. in my experience as a Probation Officer, many 
of the J.P. ·s that I"ve worked with were also Juvenile 
Judges and they were quite inadequate. 

! think that. before I could vote for this piece of legis­
lation. I would have to be assured that there 's going to 
be some kind of course or training whereby the indi­
vidual is at least well acquainted with the Juvenile De­
linquents· Act. In my experience, that's been very hard 
to find - a J.P. who is really well acquainted with 
Federal legislation. 

I can understand putting over very serious cases to a 
Magistrate, but again in some areas this might take 
three or four months and in dealing with juveniles it 
must be done qu ickly, in most cases. So the only proce­
dure I can see is by furthering the training of the J.P.'s 
to include something specifically to do with juveniles. 

I wondt!r if Mr. Legal Advisor could give us some 
assuraPce of a change in attitude in the Legal Depart­
ment ~awards more training for J .P. 's? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, I've been asked 
!or someth ing which I don't have that kind of authority 
on. We do the best we can with the money we have, and 
we a re satisfied that the people who hold these appoint­
ments a redoing an excellent job, and unless we're given 
substantial sums of money, I don't think we can use 
qualified people. 

We can train them, and we can send them on courses, 
and we do this , but we can't undertake to do it for every 
person for every appointment. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman , as a suggestion , is 
there anything we could do in the area of insisting that in 
juvenile cases, that the J.P .'s have only the power to 
remand over to the Juvenile Court itself, where for in­
stance, it was felt by the court that a juvenile should be 
kept in custody for some reason, maybe because of the 
severity of the crime this juvenile is alleged to have 
committed , or perhaps for their own safety or medical 
reasons or whatever; that the Justices of the Peace 
perhaps be given only the power to remand and be 
forced through the judicial process, to send this juvenile 
offender to the appropriate court? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: It's a difficult question to ans­
wer, Mr. Chairman. We don't ever encourage a Juvenile 
Court judge, who is not the person who is holding the 
practically full time appointment in Whitehorse to dea l 
with any serious case. 

But on the other hand , there are people - children 
may be up for very minor things which can be dealt with 
by no sentence at all, an uncontested case where it's a 
plea of guilty and all that happens is that the person gets 
a warning. I think it 's wrong to limit them down to 
dealing with that case and just dismissing the case out 
of hand. 

It's a difficult thing to deal with and a highly technical 
thing to deal with , and I can't really give undertakings , 
except to say that the policy is that a Juvenile Court 
judge outside Whitehorse, is not allowed by the Magis-
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trate to handle any form of a serious case whatsoever. 
But to stop him legally is quite a different thing. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor : Well, Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'll ask a 
question first of the Legal Advisor, just in response to 
some of the comments that have been made. What is the 
mechanism available to us now in the event that we 
wanted to get rid of one of these Juvenile Court judges? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: I'm not sure how you get rid of a 
Juvenile Court judge, Mr. Chairman, but you could cut 
the ground from under the person's feet by ending his 
appointment as a Justice of the Peace. That can be done 
easily, and then their jurisdiction is just destroyed. 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman? The reason I asked 
that is I was hoping the Legal Advisor could tell me 
something that it would probably be at the response of a 
community that you know, if you had an unsatisfactory 
performance by one of these judges going on, that we 
would soon have notice of th is and appropriate action 
wou ld be taken. Would this not be the case? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Appropriate action would be 
taken, Mr. Chairman, but there is no question that 
merely because a complaint was made by somebody 
that the government is going to terminate an appoint­
ment. The matter would be dealt with in a judicial fash­
ion , with appropriate recommendations and a chance 
for the person to be heard and everything else. 

But in the final analysis, the Commissioner would 
take away the appointment of a Justice of the Peace, if 
sufficient cause existed. 

Mr. Lengerke : Yes. Mr. Chairman, again I'm not 
inferring that it would be one complaint. It would be a 
number of them, I'm sure, and they would have to be 
substantiated. My comment, Mr. Chairman, was going 
to be anyway, that I thought that - I'm in full agree­
ment with the Ordinance, and I think it's again another 
one of those significant steps where it shows that Yukon 
is maturing, and we are capable of running some of our 
own affairs , and I'm in full accord with the Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I've been trying 
to get in for some time, and I'm a little after the fact 
now, but an Honourable Member earlier raised a point 
that there are incompetent J.P.'s who are not trained or 
competent to deal with juveniles, and I would like to 
draw to her attention the fact that there is training 
provided for all J.P .'s. They are also provided with 
manuals and directives, and they have all kinds of legal 
restrictions within which they must stay. They are not 
just set on a bench and given three bucks for each per­
son that appears before them and deal with them out of 
hand. 

They are very stringent regulations indeed. I would 
like, Mr. Chairman, to point out to Honourable Mem-



bers. that the purpose of this Bill is not to figure out how 
we appoint J.P.'s, the purpose of this Bill- nor how we 
tra in them. nor what their competency may be. The 
purpose of this Bill is to give the Yukon Government. the 
power to name Juvenile Cout judges. rather than the 
Government of Canada. and 1 'm all for that. 

Mr. Chairman : Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor : Mr. Chairman. my problem isn't 
with the power , as the Honourable Member who has 
spoken before has said. to appoint a Juvenile Court 
judge necessarily, but my concern is around the ap­
pointment of the Justice of the Peace is that judge. and 
perhaps this could work into a blanket situation. 

There is nothing here that says it won't. and what is 
not expressed is certainly not imp! ied in legislat ion. 

When a juvenile offender - I'm thinking more par­
ticularly in the outlying areas. of course, and when a 
juvenile offcender is brought before a Justice of the 
Peace who has now been appointed and given the pow­
ers of a Judge of the Juvenile Court. that the young 
person is faced in court with what obviously must be a 
fairly traumatic experience for that person, with a 
Crown prosecutor, no - perhaps a policeman who is 
acting on behalf of the Crown in the prosecution. Mr . 
Chairman , and is facing, as I say in the first instance. a 
policeman who may have a general knowledge of the 
Juvenile Delinquents' Act, but still indeed is not fully 
perhaps conversant with it as would be perhaps a Crown 
prosecutor . 

Then you have this young person being judged by a 
Justice of the Peace , who no doubt is not conversant 
with the Juvenile Delinquents' Act, or whatever charge 
might be involved, and so now you have two people 
which you cannot say with any assurety, are really fully 
conversant with the Act, passing judgment or involving 
the passing of judgment upon the young offender. 

This is what I'm trying to get at, Mr. Chairman, is that 
I don't want to leave too much room in here for this type 
of thing to happen. I think that there must be a way with 
further additional amendment to the Justice of the 
Peace Ordinance and this Bill, whereby we can write in 
those safeguards and assurances that I'm looking for. 
Otherwise at this point in time, I just can't add my 
support to those who might vote for th is Bill. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger. 

Mr. Berger: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I do agree 
with the concerns of the Member from Watson Lake that 
it doesn't spell it out in here at all and just want to point 
out to the Honourable Members here it says any Justice 
of the Peace, it does not spell out any qualifications. I 
think it would be just so easy for us now to send it back, 
the Bill back to the Legal Advisor to put on sound qual­
ifications and how Justices of the Peace can be ap­
pointed to the Juvenile Court. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 

Mr. F leming; A question , Mr. Chairman, the ques­
tion that I had has been answered, however I have 
another . I would like to maybe from Mr. Legal Advisor 
as to the case of a j uvenile being tried by a Justice of the 

Pe<Jce who is now appointed to this position in say an 
outlying district. Would that juveni le not under the pre­
sent system be allowed to ask to go to a higher court or to 
a higher judge? Would he hm·r to take that. what e\·er 
was handed to him there? 

The Legal Advisor: No. Mr. Chairman. I think when 
he comes up before the person who is due to try him. he 
has to accept that jurisdiction - he has the right to 
appeal. but if he comes up before the juveni le court 
judge. just like anyone else. I think he's got to accept the 
jurisdiction. Otherwise. you've got a sort of selection 
process of submitting the names of the various judges to 
the juveniles and saying which one will you have? And. 
you know. we really haven't got to that stage yet be­
cause. in practice. nothing much happens to juveniles 
who come before juvenile judges. and i thought that the 
debate would turn around that when we were discussing 
it. but a juvenile judge who does something can't do any 
harm in the light of the present way that the law is 
running. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke; Fine. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I think we have to take 
a look at the realities of a J .P. working in a small com­
munity. I know that when I was a probation officer of an 
area where there was no one who wanted to be a J.P. so 
we had to go to the next jurisdiction continually. thirty 
miles away to have a J.P. or a juvenile judge. or any 
kind of legal proceedings. and. to me. I think I re­
member it lasting for about five or six years. that kind of 
circumstance where there was no one in the community 
who wanted to be a J.P. So i can really understand the 
federal government's poisition in appointing a J .P. al so 
a juvenile judge. because it is a difficult situation. And I 
can also understand that they're doing that already so 
why don't carry it on and just get it to the Territorial 
Government as a - and that 's all we're doing. I still 
think that at this time we could take a close look at 
what 's actually happening in those communities and 
whether or not it's a detrimental effect that's being 
made, and we should make a choice between whether or 
not it 's worthwhile to wait for the magistrate to come 
because the child certainly has better protection in his 
right, because the magistrate is better acquainted with 
that sort of situation and, also because the juvenile 
judge, J .P., is many times far too acquainted with the 
community and far to prejudiced against certain 
families, in my experience, to real ly sit wisely. And 
unless there's some assurance of really thorough train­
ing, especially in the juvenile area, I really feel reluc­
tant to help pass this Bill. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I wish to thank 
the Honourable Member for her support of the intent of 
this particular amendment. I think that we're getting a 
message here from our other Honourable Members, 
and that is that they wish clarification as to the training 
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and dut1es of J.P.'s and/or the need for any further 
training . and/or the possible source of any funds to pro­
vide tha t training. I would undertake. Mr. Chairman. on 
behalf of my colleague who is responsible for this de­
partment. to assure you tha t some furth er information 
on the subject of current training programs. etc. for 
J .P.'s wi ll be brought in . 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs . Watson: Mr. Chai rman. I have sat here and 
lis tened to this crit icism of the J ustices of the Peace of 
the Yukon Territory and I know of a lot of good Justices 
of the Peace who are <.:ontributing their time to their 
community . and I'm sure that if they'd have heard the 
remarks here today. you'd have trouble getting another 
one. There's no way, it 's getting ver y. very bad when we 
have community-minded people who volunteer thei r 
services. and they're really volunteering their services, 
a nd they volunteer their services and they spend a lot of 
time at it , and then somebody in the pol itical a rena 
wants to make a big issue of it and start bandying it 
around. And I'd like to defend these people - the Jus­
t ices of the Peace in the Yukon, who don their su its. take 
off their coveralls and don their suits and go down be­
cause it's necessary to have a hearing. It 's done for the 
convenience of justice in the Yukon, and I don 't think 1 

know of one that probably wouldn't handle a juvenile 
delinquent in a community just capably as any magis­
trate from Whitehorse. I have no problems supporting 
this Bill. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, I 'd like to compl i­
ment the Honourable Member from Kluane on the elo­
quent speech, and I must say that I do share the 
thoughts that were eppressed in her last words in r e­
spect to the sacrifice and difficulties facing the J.P.'s 
across the Territory. But I'm not here today to defend 
the J .P.'s because I never understood that they were 
ever to be questioned in the first place. I would like to 
return to my original argument, is the defense of the 
juvenile offender. This is who I 'm talking about. And 
I'm still saying today that quite often I've heard in this 
House and also in other places, for instance in the re­
source field, why should a hippie come along and tell a 
mining engineer to shut his mining operation down be­
cause this very young person and inexperienced person 
perhaps didn't understand the Act that he was supposed 
to be looking at or the regulations he was supposed to be 
enforcing. We've had other areas where we've ques­
tioned inspector s going into the field and inspecting 
without having assured knowledge that that inspector 
knows what he 's inspecting and has a suitable qualifica­
tions. Your electircal inspector , your fie inspector, 
these people a ll have to have qualifications before they 
pass judgements on the people of the Yukon in their 
respective areas. 

All right. What about the juvenile? Mr. Chairman, 
ought not the person who passes judgement of any kind 
on this juvenile, no matter what , ought not that person to 
be fully knowledgable and have some experience in this 
field? This is what I 'm talking about. It's not the protec­
tion for the J .P .'s, but the protection for the juvenile 
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himself. I see no protection here and I s till say that there 
ought to be some compulsion of requirement on the J .P. 
who's to be appointed. This person must possess certain 
specified qualifications or he ought not to be permitted 
to sit in judgement on juvenile offenders. And perhaps , 
there may be J.P.'s who don 't necessarily want this 
posi tion either. I don't know. But it's for those reasons 
tha t I'm having trouble accepting the - I accept the 
spirit of the BilL but I can't accept the Bill until those 
safeguards a re there. 

Mr. Cha ir man: Mrs . Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs . Whyard: Mr. Chairma n, I hasten to reas­
sure the Honourable Member from Watson Lake that 
we do not I igh tly appoint Juvenile Court judges . The 
most r ecent incumbent of this position took many 
months to arrive at the point where she felt that she 
could competently accept the appointment, and that 
was many months after sitting in and tra ining and at­
tendance of confer ences and much legal s tudy. It was a 
matter of conscience on her part, to assur e herself tha t 
she was competent before she accepted the appoint· 
ment. 

I would just like to ask, Mr. Chairman, if the Honour· 
able Member would accept some guidlelines as to how 
you would determine whether or not a J.P . was compe­
tent to sit on a case involving a juvenile del inquent. 
Would you, for example, Mr. Chairman , say are you 
now or have you ever been a juvenile? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall : Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I don 't want 
to belabour this particula r debate, but I 'm concerned by 
the comment that the Honourable Member from Wat­
son Lake just made. I would like some clarification 
from the Honourable Member as what he calls a hippie. 

When one considers most of our mining engineers 
after spending a considerable amount of time doing 
their duties look like hippies also, I would like your 
clarification, if I may? 

Mr. Cha irman: Mr. Taylor ? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Is the Honourable Member be­
coming embarrassed for some strange reason? 

Mr. Me Call: On the contrary, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard : Mr. Chairman, to get away from the 
levity and back to something more serious, and some­
thing which I consider teribly serious, is the termination 
of appointments of juvenile judges and J.P.'s and again 
in my experience this has been almost impossible. 

I am wondering if there is legisla tion on the books now 
that covers this procedure. Is there a real procedure, or 
does one just write a letter to the Commissioner and say 
this, this and this is wrong with our juvenile judge or our 
J .P., and we would !ike to have the appointment termi­
nated. 

I know that I have made suggestions to the R.C.M.P. 
and to Magistrates , this type of thing, but there didn't 



seem to be any real legal procedure to follow. If I cou ld 
be ad\·ised if th ere is. I would appr eciate it . 

Mr. Legal Adviser : Mr . Chairman. the power rest ~ 

in the Commissioner to terminate an appointment. 

Mr. Cha irman: Ms. Millard ? 

Ms. Millard: Wel l then. Mr. Chairman. perhaps that 
could be put in this section even. that we have appoint· 
ments here. why not terminations as weJJ? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Miller? 

Mr. Legal Adviser: lt"s already in the legislation. 
this is merely adding a section II to an existing Ordi· 
nance. It's already in the legislat ion earlier that a J .P. 
appointment can be terminated. This only l imits his 
appointment. it's a designation of an individual J .P. to 
be clothed with these powers but his appointment as 
J.P. is terminated . any other powers he had arising out 
of it would automatically go too. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: So Mr. Chairman, as I understand it. 
one would only have to write a letter to the Commis­
sioner and the Commissioner on his own consideration 
wou ld either terminate or keep on that position. Is there 
no recourse for the poor J .P. or Juvenile Judge who is 
being mal igned? Is there no appeal to that? It's just 
simply a decision . a straight decision of the Commis­
sioner? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, I understood she 
asked me what the legal authority was, that 's what the 
legal authority was. but the Commissioner, I would 
have no doubt, would not simply terminate an appoint­
ment in answer to a letter from somebody from the 
public. He would go through quite a difficult procedure 
to investigate th e matter and give the person concerned 
an opportunity to be heard and would take advice al­
most certainly from the Judge of the Supreme Court of 
the Territory or the Magistrate in the case, and this is 
how it would be done. 

There is no formality set out how to do it, but this is 
how it would be done. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mel ntyre? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Mr. Chairman, as an old J.P., I could 
tell you how they get rid of J .P.'s, they don 't. They just 
appoint another one in the same district and use him. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you , Mr. Mcintyre. Mrs. 
Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I have one question. 
Yesterday and the day before, we went through an ex­
ercise where we were ch ided for not having Indian peo­
ple involved in the decision- making process in the 
Yukon Territory, and in the political process of the 
Yukon Territory. 

Now I see and I believe there is at least one Indian 
Justice of the Peace, two Indian Justices of the Peace in 

the Yukon . I wonder if I c:ould have comments from the 
llonourable Member from Ogih·ie. who represents an 
area where they do have an Indian Justice of the Peace. 
whether she thinks it would be in order for the Govern­
ment to even consider appointing these Ind ian Just1ces 
of the Peace as Juvenile Cou rt judges when so many of 
the young offenders in that area would naturally be 
Indian people. We are always hearing that Indian peo­
ple should be more or less come before people of their 
own understanding and culture. 

I would I ike to get the remarks from the Honourable 
Member'? 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. M illard: Well. Mr. Chairman. I'm certa inly not 
making any personal comments about the Juveni le 
Judge or the J.P. in the Old Crow area. I ha\·e never 
worked under him. so any of my comments were not 
rel ated to him specifically. 

As well. I reall y feel again that if any Juvenile Judge. 
Ind ian. gr een or orange. were given the proper tr aining 
and the proper perspective on court procedure. there 
would be an assurance in my mind that they would be 
judging that person wisely. whether again they were of 
any race. colour. creed or sex. I would love to have that 
assu rance from our Government that before we are 
appoint ing Juvenile Judges. we at least gi ve them some 
kind of training in that direction . in that specific area. 
which is a tremendously important area in the courts. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. I thought I had 
made it very clear that that training has been made 
available, and has been utilized. 

I would just like to make one further comment on the 
subject of this Bill , aside from inviting the Honourable 
Member from Watson Lake to attend a sess ion of 
Juvenile Court some day, please, when the Judge is 
presiding with her permission, because that court is 
closed normally. 

But I think it might be edifying to see in what way the 
court operates and the protection provided frr every 
juvenile who appears before that court. He doesn't ap­
pear alone, or unrepresented. But I would just like to 
point out in the context of the Honourable Member from 
Ogilvie 's remarks about qualifications. one of the chief 
dangers involved and one of the things we are trying to 
eliminate with this amendment, is any smacking or iota 
of political patronage entering this appointment field, 
and that is one of the most important reasons for this 
amendment, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Thank you , Mr. Chairman. I don't know 
whether I should stand up here or not because we are 
getting far into something which has nothing to do with 
it I believe, but I would like to know, ask somebody 
whoever has the answer to my question , is where are the 
qualifications spelled out for such appointment? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman there are no qual­
ifications spelled out certainly for Juveni le Court 
Judges or for J.P.'s except that in order to be designated 
as a Juvenile Court Judge, you must first have been a 
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.J.I'. That's all. 

Mr. Clwirman: Mr. Berger'? 

Mr. Berger: Well then. l\-lr. Chairman. I hm·e to go 
bm:k to what I said before. I think noll' would be the timP 
to spell out certain quali ficat ions in this Ordinance. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman. when I say there 
is no formal qualiricat ion. this is not to say that there arc 
no qualifications sought before an appointment goes 
forward fo!· anyone as a Justice of the Peace. but as the 
llonourable Member said a moment ago. patronage is 
not one of them. 

There is a search carried out by the Department of 
Legal Affairs. for available people to act as Justices of 
the Peace throughout the Territory. As the Honourable 
Member also points out. we have had two appointments 
recently of Indian people as Justices of the Peace and 
except for one person who had held an appointment for 
many years. we had failed from 1971 until today. to find 
anyone else who would act. who was an Indian. to act as 
a Justice of the Peace. notwithstanding frequent and 
regular invitations. and we had asked the inter vention 
or the Go1·ernment of Canada to try and help us and they 
had failed. 

In the end. we found two people who were willing to 
come forward themselves because it's a very. very 
onerous task. But the qualification which we look for is 
that the person must have sufficient education to be able 
to read the Criminal Code and understand the proce­
dures. and be able to accept instruct ion. A person must 
be thought highly of in the community within which he 
resides and be publ icly accepted by the people among 
whom he lives and whom he'll have to deal with in court. 

Then there's a check made as to his past record and he 
must make a written application. setting out that he's 
willing to act. what he's willing to do and he's willing to 
have his past life investigated by the R.C.M.P . prior to 
the appointment. At that point then. the appointment 
goes forward. 

So that it's an onerous thing for a person to offer 
himself for public service as a Justice of the Peace. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman. I have a question I 
would perhaps direct in the direction of Mr. Legal Ad­
visor . Mr. Chairman and perhaps he could tell me. it 
seems to me in subsection 11( 1 l. there's two powers 
being granted in that one subsection . First it states that 
this person can now deal with juvenile delinquents. 

I would like to know just how wide that power is. what 
is that meant to encompass. the words "to deal with 
jvenile del inquents". 

In the second part of i t. it seems fairly straightfor­
ward. First. this person can deal with juvenile delin­
quents. then it does on to say that they c.:~ n -- that the 
person can then be appointed or is a Judge of the 
Juvenile Court for all the purposes of the Ju venile De­
linquents' Act of Canada and is that expressed as only 
that Act? 

Could I have just a summation from Mr. Legal Ad­
visor. as to what these powers are and how they are 
identified and how broad they are? What do they mean? 

l\1r. Legal Ad1·isor: Mr. Chairman. the whole mat­
ter is highly technical. There are two methods of ap­
pointing a Ju\'lmile Court Judge. One is under provin­
cial authority which th is would be. to designatore or 
authori1e a Justice to act. or under Section .J3. at the end 
of the Act. the Government of Canada r.1ay. notwith­
standing the absence of any provincial authority. desig­
nate a Justice of the Peace in any province or portion 
thereof'. where the Governor- in- Council is satisfied 
there are facilities for dealing with juveniles. that is in 
the Juvenile Court Act. 

Now. we had no authority under the first head. nor had 
we -- because we had no pro1·incial or Territorial 
legislation in force. So. all appointments were made 
under the last head that is where the Government of 
C<mada was s<1tisfied that there were facilities for deal­
ing with Juvenile Courts. they could authorize any jus­
tice to act under that. 

So the Section is not intended to be any different from 
the existing au thority of the Justice of the Peace under 
the Ju1·enile Del inquents' Act of Canada . It is merely 
picking up. for jurisdictional purposes. the exact word­
ing that's used in the Juvenile Delinquents· Act ol 
is what he purports to be. and that is a Juvenile Court 
Judge. I t's not to give any special jurisdiction . it ·s just 
to tic the string around it and to dot the "i's" and cross 
the "t's". 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr . Chairman. with respect. 11 
doesn't answer my first question about the "to deal 
with". I don't recall see ing th is terminology belore in 
law in the Yukon. What powers does this encompass'' 

You·ve gi1·en the Justice of the Peace. by order. th !.' 
power to deal with juvenile delinquents. Now. what does 
that in fer " How broad are those powers specif ic.:tlly? 
Are there any limits to those powers·> What does "deal 
with ju1·enile delinquents" really mean? 

Mr·. Legal Advisor: It's too short an answer to say 
that the person is a Juvenile Cour t Judge. This is the 
way the person is defined. and we arc using this form ot 
appointment. merely because that is used in the Cana­
dian statu te. 

So this is a long- winded way or saying the person i s a 
Juvenile Court Judge. and then right throughout the 
Juvenile Delinquents' Act. a Ju1·cnile Court Judge this 
and a Juvenile Court Judge that. but a Justice of the 
Peace who is not a Juvenile Court Judge. is mentioned 
in a couple of sections and given certain minimal pow­
ers. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: What's "deal with" mean? 

Mr. Legal Advisor : "Deal with " means whate1·er it 
means in English. It's a very difficult word to define. 
It's not intended to be a word of art. it's just intended as 
its ordinary dictionary meaning to do all that's neces­
sary. to handle. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Well. Mr. Chairman. with respect. 
if the Legal Advisor can't define it. it ought not to go into 
law. I wi ll be voting contrary to the Bill. 

Ms. Millard : Mr. Chairman. just for clar ification. 
the way I read that is to deal with juvenile delinquents. 



dot, dot, dot, for a ll the purposes of the Juvenile Delin­
quents' Act. In other words, it's defined within the Act. 

Mr. Chairman: Is there any fur ther debate? Shall 
this clause car ry? 

Some Members: Disagree. 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman : We will have a show of hands. Those 
in favour of this clause carrying? The clause is carried. 

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, you are asking now if 
this cla use is carried , is it not? I didn 't hear you. 

Mr. Chairman: This clause is now carried. 

Mr. Fleming: I didn't hear you. 

Mr. Chairman: Twelve ( 1 ) : 

( Reads Clause 12(1 11 

Mr. Chairman: Shall this clause carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: 

(Reads Preamble 1 

Mr. Chairman: Shall the title carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall I report the Bill without 
amendment? Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Some Members : Disagreed. 

Mr. Chairman: The Bill is now carried. I ' ll declare a 
brief recess . 

rRECESS ! 

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order. 
We will proceed with the reading of Bill Number 8. 
One: 

r Reads Clause (1!! 

Mr. Chairman: Shall the clause carry? 

Some Members: Carried. 

Mr. Cha irman: Two: 

(Reads Clause ( 2 J! 

Mr. Chairman : Shall the clause carry? Mrs. Wat­
son? 
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Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I was a little late in 
getting in. with my apologies. Why a re we having this 
now? I'm suspicious of the metric conversion ... 

Mr. Chairman: Order.Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: ... because of the ... 

Mr. Chairman: Order. Mrs. Watson. Genera l de­
bate is permitted after the r eading of clause 1. If it is the 
consent of Committee. you can pursue a genera l debate 
on it now, but it should be after the first clause is read. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Cha irman. though. i!Tm opposed 
to the whole darn thing. how can I accept 2'? 

Mr. Chairman: The opportunity is after the reading 
of the first clause . un less you have concurrence of 
Committee otherwise. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I' mon the Rules 
Committee, and it' s a new rule to me. 

Mr. Chairman: No, it is not. 

Hon Mr. McKinnon.: That is why you are on the 
Rules Committee. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman. I think that possibly 
there should be some discussion on the principle of the 
Bill , so that all Members are clarified . 

Mr. Chairman: Then I would remind Members that 
the principle of the of the Bill is discussed after the first 
clause is read, a t the t ime and at that time only. We wil l 
permit genera l discussion now because th is is the first 
instance this has occurred. 

Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I'm permitted now to 
speak now on the principle of the BilJ? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes. 

Mrs. Watson: Which I should have done after second 
reading? 

Mr. Chairman : You should have done after the 
reading of the first clause. 

Mrs. Watson: All right , I'm suspicious of this be­
cause of the way we leaped into the metric system in our 
mileposts on the Alaska Highway and do we need it 
now? Do we have to have it? Is it just going to bring in 
more confusion? 

I really don't know, but I wish that somebody were 
able to-- we were able to get some input from some 
people who would be directly affected by this or if some­
body has comm ents from people who would be directly 
affected by this. Do we have to go into this right now? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Cha ir man, in my Department I 
happen to have the Metr ication Committee in my 
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bailiwick. because the Chairman of the Metrication 
Commit tee happens to tbe the Assistant Superintendent 
of Education . 

We felt that this Bill should be presented at this Ses­
s ion. as we are trying to coordinate our metrication 
throughout the Yukon with the general national policy , 
which for instance. for th is amendment to the Highways 
Ordinance. would not come into effect until September 
1st. 1977. 

If you will go further into the Bill in c lause 4, "This 
Ordinance or any portion thereof shall come into force 
on a day to be fixed by the Commissioner". At that given 
point in time, in concert with the rest of the provincial 
jurisdictions. we would , as a Government, authorize the 
Bill to come into effect. 

I think it 's fairly important and I informed members 
of the Committee that at the present time, I have -- a 
member of my department is down in Toronto, at a 
conference on metrication, discussing the possibilities 
of contracting an individual to come to the Yukon , or be 
hired in the Yukon as a Metrication Officer, in order to 
coordinate metrication in the Yukon, with the national 
policies as they are expressed in Ottawa. 

The contract would be federally funded over a period 
of time. As soon as I get more information on this , I 'm 
expecting to get more information next week, I 'II bring 
it to the Committee, so that everyone is aware of what is 
going on. 

I think it's unfortunate what's happened in the past, in 
relation -- I know the Honourable Member from 
Kluane is referring to the highway signs. I think it 's 
essential that we attempt to coordinate our efforts on a 
national scale , so that we're in concert with all the pro­
vincial jurisdictions. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman, it would have 
been nice to be in concert with the other jurisdictions, 
because we were far ahead , and here we are now, Sep­
tember, '77. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Well , Mr. Chairman ... 

Mr:;. Watson: If this is the date ... 

Mr. Chairman: Order, please. 

Mrs. Watson: ... that this is supposed to come into 
effect, what are we doing it now for? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman , the reason this is 
being introduced now is in order to get the Department 
of Public Works and Highways starting to prepare fot 
the eventual changeover. It will not come into effect 
until September 1st, 1977. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes , Mr. Chairman, I'm concerned 
with this. We certainly had some reaction from the gen­
eral public on it already and those are the people who 
have been involved in the transportation industry and 
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they have expressed some concern that their drivers 
and people of th is nature are going to have some diffi­
culty with some of these sections as they are im­
plemented. 

So I would suggest here that possibly we should look at 
rather than deleting 20 feet and substituting the words 
''s ix meters" , that we take, attack that we would say by 
leaving the 20 feet and adding the words " six meters" . 
In other words, let 's use the dual definitions for a while , 
and that would certainly allow people to get orientated 
to what is going on. 

I think, Mr. Chairman , if that in fact is what we are 
trying to do is to educate the public in the metrication 
system, that that 's one way of doing it and we can even­
tually eliminate the one side of it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Miller? 

Mr. Miller: Mr. Chairman, I might point out that the 
policy that has been taken by the Metrication Commis­
sion of Canada in introducing metric to Canada and they 
have found this from experience , you don't use dual 
measurements, because the old measurement will 
never disappear. 

You have to, if you're going with it, take the bull by the 
horns and go with it, and that way everyone will gradu­
ally, but they will become accustomed to the new sys­
tem .. If we are going to use dual forms , it will never 
come about. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: I want to make the comment that 
that may be good in principle and it sounds fair, but I 
think even in the case of temperatures, for instance, I 
think most people went out and purchased a different 
type of thermometer and had the dual thermometers for 
as long as they could. 

Just because we had an enactment that says you can't 
do this, they still go out and do it and I suggest that this 
would happen here. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes , Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Miller said more or less what I wanted to point out 

to the Honourable Members, that he gets the publication 
from the metric system, that if he was reading there, 
that he would find out it points out in there, do not use a 
dual system and just change over and make people read 
the new system as it's supposed to be . 

I would also like to point out to the Honourable Mem­
bers, that by having the time to next year, September, 
1977, I think it would be nice for all the transportation 
companies to take the time and educate their drivers, if 
necessary. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I think tha t we could 
get into a lot of legal problems if we did use the old 
system, because in my small knowledge of math , I don't 
think 20 feet exactly measures six meters, so that you 
might have all kinds of legal cases going on where it 
could go on forever , in discussing it in meters and feet. 



Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

MHon. Mr. Taylor: Just one general question that 
I'm not yet clear on, has the Federal Metrication Act 
passed the Parliament of Canada? Is that in fac t law as 
yet? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, to my knowledge, it 
has not. What happened was that the Federal Govern­
ment put forth a policy paper on metrication , subse­
quently that policy paper was accepted. My under­
standing is the reason that no Act has been presented to 
the-- presented to Parliament, is because of the fact 
that so much of the legislation, various aspects of legis­
lation, different acts have to be changed. 

How they are going to go about in the field of law, 
attempting to put it into law , I don 't know, but this is the 
reason that no Act has been passed in the House of 
Parliament. 

I think another point that I would like to point out is 
that the metrication officer, if the Federal Government 
is prepared to fund this particular individua l to be hired 
by the Territorial Government, what would happen is 
that he would be here to coordina te the Government of 
the Yukon Territory's changeover to metrication as 
well as d isseminate information to the public, like for 
example , to the sector that the Honourable Member of 
Whitehorse Riverdale was referring to. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I just can't help but 
feel that we are jumping the gun on this. Going into 
other provinces of Canada last summer, very, very few 
kilometers or kilometers -- kilometer it is, isn 't it, 
signs were seen on the road and often there were dual 
signs. 

The temperature, this is true, you 've got the Celsius 
on the radio and you 've got the Fahrenheit and I just 
wonder , you know, maybe this is because we are sort of 
a satellite, a colony of Canada, that we are sort of a 
gu inea pig for the metric conversation? I'm beginning 
to think maybe we are, and I think we are be ing rushed 
into something. 

You don 't see-- there isn't any evidence of it in the 
Provinces . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, a ll I have to do is to 
reiterate once again that we are attempt ing to stay in 
concert with the r est of the provincial jurisdictions . It's 
unfortunate what happened with the highway signs . The 
target d ate for the changeover of highway signs 
throughout Canada is September, 1977 and I imagine at 
that given point in time, all signs will be changed . 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, don 't any of us know 
th e kilometers be tte r now tha n when they were 
changed. I still talk about miles on the Alaska Highway 
and Im sure ninety percent of the people do. 

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further general debate? 
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Mr. Chairman Shall clause (21 be carried? 

Hon Mr. McKinnon: Agreed. 

Some Members: ADisagreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Subsection 3(301. 

! Reads3 r30ii 

Mr. Chairman: Shall clause 3 carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Some Members : Disagreed. 

Mr. Chairman: An Ordinance to Amend the High­
ways Ordinance. 

! Reads Preamble 1 

Mr. Chairman: Sha ll the title carry? 

Some Members : Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Sha ll I repor t the Bill without 
amendment? 

Mrs. Watson: May I have one question before we 
vote on that? It is on the wording of the Bill in section ( 11 
and it s tates the Highways Ordinance is amended by the 
dele ting in subsection 2( 1 1 on Overload. Now does that 
mean that the word "overlaod" is being deleted? 

Mr. Chairman: Order please . You lost your chance 
Mrs. Watson. You can't refer back at th is stage. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman , if you see a mistake 
just because of a s illy rule, we can 't correct it? 

Mr. Chairman: You might call them si lly rules, but 
if you 'd like to re fer to your handbook. 

Mrs. Watson: No, Mr. Chairman, I wouldn't like to. 

Mr. Chairman: TBill Number 8 is reported out of 
Committee without amendment. 

Mrs. Watson : Mr. Chairman, I call division. 

Mr. Chairman: There is no division in Committee. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman , I would like to reg ister 
my vote against this Bill . 

Mr. Chairman: You already have, Mrs. Watson. 

MBill Number Nine. Clause one: 

! Reads Clause (1)) 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I would certainly like 
some cla rification and explanatory note. It says simply 
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to add credit unions to the I ist of corporations exempted 
from control and security trading in Part Three of the 
Ordinance. I just wonder if we could ha,·e some clearer 
definition of that. in a more common language. 

Mr. Chairman : Mr. Miller. 

Mr. Miller : Mr. Chairman. the chartered banks. 
trust compani es and insurance companies in the Yukon 
can now sell secu rities such as trust documents. certifi­
cates of trusts. registered ret1rement sa,· ing plans 
document. registered home owners' plan document. 
this type of thing. because they're sell ing these on a 
prospectus they have filed elsewhere in Canada. They 
are exempt under our Securities Ordinance from filing 
a similar prospectus in the Yukon. All we're doing with 
this is offering the same opportunity to the credit un­
ionsa in the Yukon. Again they would have filed their 
prospectus in another province in Canada. 

Mr. Chairman : Is there any further debate? Shall 
the clause carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: 

1 Reads Preamble 1 

Mr. Chairman: Shall the title carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Sha ll I report the Bill without 
amendment? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Bill Number 9 is now reported out of 
Committee without amendment. 

Mr. McCall: Mr . Chairman . I would now like to 
move that Mr. Speaker do now resume the Chair. 

Mr. Chairman: Seconder. 

Mr. Fleming: I'll second that. 

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. McCall 
and seconded by Mr . F leming that Mr. Speaker do now 
resume the Chair. Do you agree? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: The motion is carried. 

r Motion Carried ; 

Mr. Chairman: I' m sorry Mr. Miller. you are ex­
cused. 

r Mr. Speaker resumes tile Chair 1 

Mr. Speaker: I will call the House to order. 
May we have a report from the Chairman of Commit-
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Mr. Hibberd: Yes . Mr. Speaker . The Committee of 
the Whole haveconsidet od Bill Number 3. An Ordinance 
Respecting the Institute vf Chartered Accountants: Bill 
Number 4. An Ordinance tu Amend the Insurance Pre­
miums Tax Ordinance: Bill I'\ umber 6. An Ordinance to 
Amend th e Just ice of the Peace Ordinance: Bill 
Number 8. An Ordinance to Amend the Hi~;hways Ordi­
nance: and Bill Number 9. An Ordinance to Amend the 
Securities Ordinance. without amendment. 

The Committee of the Whole have also considered Bill 
Number 1. Emergency Medical Ordinance and directed 
me to report progress on the same and asked leave to 
put again. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed with the Report of 
the Chairman of Comm ittees? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: Leave granted. 
May I have your fur ther pleasure? 
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse River­

dale'' 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker.! move that we now call 
it 5:00 o'clock. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale. seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Ogilvie. that we do now call it 
5: 00 o'clock. 

Are you prepared for the motion?. 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speakera ; Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

r Motion Carried 1 

Mr. Speaker : This House now stands adjourned 
untillO :OO a.m. Monday morning next. 

rA DJO URNED1 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members : Question . 

Mr. Speaker a: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

r Motion Carried 1 



Mr. Speaker: This House now stands adjournl'd 
until 10:00 a.m. Monday morning next. 

t ADJOURNED 1 
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